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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, it is my pleasure to present the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Review and results

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the
provision of supply, installation and fitting-out services of
mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning (“MVAC") system for
various types of private and public building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in
Hong Kong and Macau.

In 2019, we achieved milestone development in the Group's
business. Other than securing a record number of 12 new
projects during the year, the Group was awarded two projects
with highest initial contract sum exceeding HK$85 million and
MPO170 million respectively. While the competition in the
MVAC system service industry remained fierce, our achievement
would not have been possible without the devotion and
professionalism of our management team and employees, as
well as the unwavering support of our customers, suppliers and
other business partners.

The total revenue of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$10.1 million or 5.0% from approximately HK$200.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
HK$190.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
Group's profit for the year increased by approximately HK$11.2
million from approximately HK$10.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately HK$21.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

Outlook

Looking forward, against the onset of an outbreak of
coronavirus disease (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) and the
continuous US-China trade conflict which has dampened the
local economy, the Directors anticipate that the global macro-
economic conditions are likely to deteriorate in the short term.
In particular, the rising labour cost, stalling of building schedule
due to suspension of construction work and shortage of
experienced labour caused by reduced labour mobility in light of
the travel restrictions between Hong Kong, Macau and the
mainland China are amongst the challenges which industry
peers have faced from the first quarter of 2020. Although the
Directors remain confident in the long term business outlook of
Hong Kong and also the performance of the Group, the
financial results of the Group in particular in the first half of
2020 may potentially be affected as a result of the adversities.

With the solid foundation of our Group’s core business, the
Directors believe that the Group is well positioned to compete
against its competitors and will continue to strive for growth by
leveraging its expertise and the experience of its management
team in the MVAC system market and by maintaining stringent
cost control and efficient resources management.

A note of appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to
express my deep gratitude to our Shareholders, clients, business
partners, suppliers and subcontractors for their continuous
support. | would also like to express our sincere appreciation to
the Group’s management and staff for their commitment,
contribution and dedication throughout the years.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Chung Chi Keung
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the
provision of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC
system for various types of private and public building projects
including infrastructural, commercial and residential building
projects in Hong Kong and Macau.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
awarded 12 new projects. Amongst the new projects awarded,
the award of two projects with an initial contract sum
exceeding HK$85 million and MOP170 million respectively
marked a new business milestone in the development of the
Group for being the largest contracts in terms of contract sum
the Group has ever been awarded in Hong Kong and Macau
respectively. In 2019, the Company had undertaken a total of
26 projects, of which 6 were approaching the end of the
project cycle and 13 were completed as at 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, our revenue
amounted to approximately HK$190.5 million (2018:
approximately HK$200.6 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 5.0% year on year. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the drop in revenue generated from operations in
Macau from approximately HK$109.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately HK$37.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Nonetheless, the decrease in
revenue generated from the Macau operations was offset by the
increase in revenue generated from operations in Hong Kong,
from approximately HK$91.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately HK$152.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 67.1% year on year. The decrease in revenue
generated from our operations in Macau corresponded to the
project cycle of our existing projects including the two projects
located at Av. do Aeroporto and Taipa in Macau, and as the
projects approached the end of project cycle, there were less
work done and less revenue recognised in 2019 as compared to
the previous year. The increase in revenue generated from our
operations in Hong Kong was mainly attributable to a
substantial amount of works performed for existing projects (in
particular, the two projects located at Repulse Bay and Shatin)
during the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared with the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE T wm R

Financial Review
Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
(i) an increase in revenue of approximately HK$20.8 million from
new projects (in particular two new projects located at
Admiralty and Chek Lap Kok); and (ii) an increase in revenue of
approximately HK$103.5 million due to the increase in the
amount of work under our existing projects as compared with
the year ended 31 December 2018 (in particular, the projects
located at Repulse Bay and Shatin which contributed to an
increase in revenue of approximately HK$78.8 million). However,
the aforesaid increments were offset by (i) a decrease in revenue
of approximately HK$3.2 million resulting from the completion
of certain projects during the year ended 31 December 2018;
and (ii) a decrease in revenue of approximately HK$131.2 million
due to the decrease in the amount of work under our existing
projects as compared with the year ended 31 December 2018
(in particular, for the two projects located at Kowloon Bay and
Taipa in Macau which contributed to a decrease in revenue of
approximately HK$100.0 million). As a result, our revenue
decreased from approximately HK$200.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$190.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of
approximately 5.0%.

Cost of Services

Our cost of services decreased from approximately HK$162.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
HK$145.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.5%. Such decrease
was primarily attributable to the combined effect of the increase
in our subcontracting charges of approximately HK$9.9 million,
and the decrease in our materials and equipment costs of
approximately HK$28.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately 18.0% from
approximately HK$38.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately HK$45.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The increase in our gross profit was primarily
due to our improved gross profit margin from approximately
19.1% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
23.8% for the year ended 31 December 2019. The improvement
in our gross profit margin was principally attributable to the
increase in the amount of our works in the project located at
Shatin (which has a relatively higher gross profit margin and
contributed 40.5% of our total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019).

Listing Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2018, our Group
recognised non-recurring listing expenses of approximately
HK$7.1 million in connection with the listing of shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) on GEM of the Stock Exchange in
February 2018. No such expenses were recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses remained relatively stable at
approximately HK$17.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: approximately HK$17.3 million).

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Group increased by approximately
69.0% from approximately HK$2.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately HK$4.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in profit before income tax.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2019

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE MmN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE T wm R

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year increased by
approximately HK$11.2 million from approximately HK$10.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
HK$21.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Excluding the one-off exceptional expenses incurred during the
year ended 31 December 2018 for the Listing of the Company,
our adjusted profit increased by approximately HK$4.0 million or
23.1% from approximately HK$17.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately HK$21.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$140.7 million (2018: approximately HK$130.6
million), which is financed by total liabilities and shareholders’
equity (comprising share capital and reserves) of approximately
HK$38.6 million (2018: approximately HK$49.9 million) and
approximately HK$102.1 million (2018: approximately HK$80.7
million), respectively.

As a result of partial repayment of bank borrowing during the
year, the total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group as at 31
December 2019 dropped to approximately HK$6.5 million (31
December 2018: approximately HK$13.1 million), and current
ratio increased from approximately 2.6 times as at 31 December
2018 to approximately 3.7 times as at 31 December 2019.

The Group’s borrowing and bank balances are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and there was no significant
exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations during the year.

The Group's gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing bank
borrowing and lease liabilities by total equity at the year-end
date, decreased from approximately 16.3% as at 31 December
2018 to approximately 7.1% as at 31 December 2019, primarily
due to the decrease in the level of bank borrowing and the
increase in total equity. The decrease in the level of bank
borrowing was primarily due to the partial repayment of the
bank borrowing during the year, whereas the increase in total
equity was primarily the result of recording a net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The management considers that the followings are the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group:

(i)  the business of the Group relies on successful tenders and
any failure of the Group to secure tender contracts would
affect the operations and financial results of the Group;

(i) erroneous or inaccurate estimation of project duration and
the costs involved when determining the tender price may
adversely affect the profitability and financial performance
of the Group;

(iii)  the Group’s historical revenue and profit margin may not
be indicative of its future revenue and profit margin; and

(iv) any delay or defects of the works of the suppliers and
subcontractors of the Group would adversely affect its
operations and financial results.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please
refer to the section headed “Risks Factors” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 12 February 2018 (the “Prospectus”).

Relationship with customers, suppliers, subcontractors and
employees

Customers

The Group’s customers mainly include main contractors and
subcontractors of various types of building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in
Hong Kong and Macau. The Group has maintained business
relationship with the top customers for a period ranging from
approximately 1 year to over 10 years. The Directors believe the
Group has established good relationship with its customers and
receives invitations from the repeat customers to submit tenders
from time to time.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE T wm R

Suppliers and Subcontractors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the suppliers and
subcontractors of the Group included (i) suppliers of air-
conditioning equipment and materials; (i) suppliers of processing
services on the Group’s equipment and materials; (iii) machinery
rental service providers; and (iv) subcontractors engaged by the
Group to perform the site works. The Group engaged the
suppliers and subcontractors on a regular basis.

The Group maintains an internal list of approved suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group selects suppliers based on a number
of factors such as their prices, quality of the goods and services
supplied, past performances and timeliness of delivery. While
engaging subcontractors, the Group selects the subcontractors
for a project by taking into account their availability of
resources and manpower, experience, track record,
quality, safety performance, timeliness of delivery, reputation
and fee quotations.

service

The Group did not encounter any material difficulty in sourcing
equipment and materials and services from our suppliers or
assigning subcontractors during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Employees

The Group respects its employees and endeavours to provide
better working conditions for its employees. We offer
competitive remuneration and a fair, flexible and transparent
recruitment process to attract and retain talents and promotes
equal opportunities among employees. Further details can also
be found in section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Capital Structure

The Shares were successfully listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 27 February 2018 (the “Listing”). Immediately
upon Listing, the total issued share capital of the Company was
HK$5,740,000 divided into 574,000,000 Shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Group since then. The share capital of the
Group comprises only ordinary shares.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Company's issued share capital was HK$5,740,000 divided into
574,000,000 ordinary Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have any
capital commitments contracted but not provided for.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual report, the
Group did not have any plans for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2019.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 26 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, the Group did not have other material contingent
liabilities.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in Hong Kong dollars and MOP. The Directors
consider the impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group
is minimal and the Group did not engage in any derivatives
agreements nor commit to any financial instrument to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Pledge of Assets

Save as disclosed in note 18 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group did not have other pledge of assets.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 170
(31 December 2018: 164) employees, of whom 116 (31
December 2018: 110) labour workers nominated by
subcontractors. The relevant cost of employing the labour
workers nominated by subcontractors was classified as
subcontracting charges and the staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, of the Group were approximately HK$24.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: approximately
HK$23.3 million).

were

The Group promotes individuals based on their performance and
development potential in the positions held. In order to attract
and retain high quality staff, competitive remuneration package
is offered to employees (with reference to market norms and
individual employees’ performance, qualification and experience).
On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to
the Group’s performance as well as individual’'s performance.
Other staff benefits include provision of retirement benefits,
medical benefits and sponsorship of training courses.
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Events after the Reporting Period

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been implemented globally. The
Group has assessed that as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak,
it may have the following possible impacts to the Group:

o progress of construction projects in Hong Kong and Macau
were delayed temporarily in the first quarter because of
the postponement of work resumption after the Chinese
New Year holiday, which may in turn affect the operating
results of the Group for the first half of 2020; and

J the temporarily slowdown of business activities resulted
from the COVID-19 outbreak may lead to delay in
settlements from the customers and the Group may have
to experience longer turnover time for recovering the trade
receivables and contract assets which may increase the
associated credit risks.

As at the date of this report, the impacts of the COVID-19
outbreak on the Group’s financial performance and the macro-
economic conditions as a whole remain uncertain, the Group is
unable to quantify the related financial effects. The Group will
continue to monitor and assess the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its financial impact on the
Group.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2019

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE MmN

BEWRER

N ZF ZFFEYR0E MK K S KR E
([2019B MBS HIFEE]) & - 2ERE KR —
EEREN RIEHE R o AEEE 120198
MEERBELER AJEHAEEEUNTH

2
=

e EBENBMBREBRERE FHNEE
ERER AREBEHFRIEHE
T -HAREMPEAE EA_Q?\:

TELFFNEERSE

o 2019EMHEERBEERFHEEDY
s ARESEPOMGANTEE M
AEEAREEREEZREERARE
WMEETH SEREMNAEASY <
HEEERBRIE M -

RAREBH  2019BRAERFHLARE

B BRRLRBEEBREREERRNZED
AEE  AEEBEESCHBUBZE - K
SERSEEER NFIHE20198 MR S RIEE
MERLKFGEHAEENYHEEE -

15



A Yo
®
HH
af
=
)
)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term
success and continuing development of the Group. Therefore,
the Board is committed to upholding good corporate standards
and procedures, so as to enhance the accountability system and
transparency of the Group, protect the interests of the
Company'’s stakeholders and create value for shareholders of the
Company.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 (the "Relevant
Period”), the Company has adopted and complied with, where
applicable, the CG Code to ensure that the Group’s business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner, except for Code Provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chung Chi
Keung (“Mr. Chung”) is currently the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company, responsible for
formulating the overall business strategies and overseeing the
business and operation of the Group. Considering that Mr.
Chung has been responsible for the overall management and
operation of the Group since its inception, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Chung
taking up both roles for effective management and business
development.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
business of the Group, formulating the Group’s overall strategic
direction and corporate governance and maintaining appropriate
levels of review, challenge and guidance in its relationship with
the management. The management is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
management and administration of the Group.

The Board is provided with the updates from management to
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
performance, recent development and prospects of the Group
on a regular basis. The Board is the ultimate decision-making
body for all matters material to the Group and discharges its
responsibilities on corporate governance either by itself or the
Board Committees set out in Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code which include the following:

1. to develop and review the policies and practice on corporate
governance of the Group and make recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “INED") as set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 45 to 49
of this annual report.

In compliance with Rules 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three INEDs
representing not less than one-third of the Board and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation
of his independence, and the Board, through the Nomination
Committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”), has
assessed and considered the INEDs to be independent during the
Relevant Period in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our
present arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse
background and experience of our INEDs. Furthermore, all Board
Committees including the Audit Committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditor or independent professional
adviser(s) when they consider necessary.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there are no other
relationship (including financial business, family, and other
material/relevant relationships) among the members of the Board
as of the date of this report.
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Diversity

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having skills, experience and expertise complementing
the business operations and development of the Group and from
a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of education,
professional background, functional expertise, gender, age,
culture and industrial experience.
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A Board Diversity Policy of the Company was adopted in
preparation for the Listing and amended in December 2018 by
the Board. The said Policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board and the factors (including but not limited
to skills, regional and industry experience, professional
experience, background, education, race, gender, age, culture
and other qualities, etc.) to be considered in determining the
composition of the Board so as to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and to maximise the Board'’s effectiveness.

Board Process and Meetings

The Board meets regularly to determine overall strategies,
receive management updates, approve business plans as well as
financial results and to consider other significant matters to the
Group. Management also provides updates to the Board with
respect to the business activities and development of the Group
on a regular basis.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the
Group's development through their constructive and informed
comments. All of the members of the Board have also disclosed
and updated their number and nature of offices held and time
involved in handling the matters of the Company on a regular
basis.
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During the Relevant Period, the Board had held four meetings to
approve, among other things, matters relating to the quarterly,
interim and annual financial results, the scope of services and
related fees to the external auditors, the engagement of
consultant to internal control function and to
business strategies, adjustment to remuneration packages to the
executive Directors and consider the reports from each Board
Committee. The Board also approved the change of external
auditors, its scope of services and related fees. The Directors’
attendance records of the Board meetings held during the
Relevant Period are set out below. An annual general meeting
("AGM") and a private meeting between the Chairman and the
INEDs as required by Code A.2.7 of the CG Code had been held
during the Relevant Period.

review the

Members of Directors

Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings, Annual
General Meeting and Training during the Relevant Period
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No. of No. of
No. of Audit Remuneration Nomination
No. of Board Committee Committee Committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings  Annual General
attended/eligible attended/eligible attended/eligible attended/eligible Meeting
Name of Directors to attend to attend to attend to attend (12 June 2019) Training "¢’
BlE/4EKk CHE/RER CEUHE/REK BLHE/AEK RRBAFAE
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ESH4 LRSS LEVS SRy SERY #Bt+=8) syl
Executive Directors HEER
Mr. Chung Chi Keung EERiE N/A
414 TER 22 7 Il /
Ms. Lai Suk Fan BRERL N/A N/A N/A
414 TER TER TER n /
Independent Non- BUFHTES
executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric BEBRE N/A
44 55 22 TER Il /
Mr. Lei For MR N/A
4/4 5/5 TER N 17 %
Mr. Lai Wai Ming REARE 3/4 5/5 22 n 1/toe2 /




Notes:

(1) This includes attending briefings, seminars, conferences, forum relevant
to the directors’ duties and responsibilities, the Group’s business,
development, strategies, etc. arranged by the Company or external
organisations or reading regulatory/corporate governance updates.

(2) Attended via tele-conference

Terms of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service
agreement, and each of the INEDs signed a letter of
appointment with, the Company. Both the said service
agreements and letters of appointment are for an initial term of
three years commencing from the date of the Listing, subject to
re-election in accordance with amended and restated Articles of
Association of the Company, as amended from time to time,
(the "Articles”) and termination in accordance with their
respective terms.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the
Company and every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least every three years. However, a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting
pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles.

As such, Mr. Lai Wai Ming and Mr. Chung Chi Keung will retire
from office as Directors and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company which
is scheduled to be held on 2 June 2020 in accordance with the
Articles and relevant code provision under the CG Code.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on the terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealing set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific
enquiry of all the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard of securities dealings
regarding transactions during the Relevant Period. The Company
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was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Relevant Period.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Group acknowledges the importance of continuing
professional development for the Directors to extend and refresh
their knowledge and skills. Every Director keeps abreast of
responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and developments of the Company.

The Directors are fully aware of the requirement under the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding professional
development. During the Relevant Period, the Company had
organised a training session in relation to the internal control for
Hong Kong listed companies and recent updates for
environmental, social and governance related matters. The
Company also circulated regulatory updates to the Directors
from time to time to ensure that all Directors keep abreast of
the latest development in the regulatory areas relating to the
Group. All Directors had attended the said training session and
provided their training records during the Relevant Period to the
Company. Details of the training records are set out on page 20
of this annual report.

Board Committees

The Board established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee by resolutions of Directors passed on 31 January
2018, for overseeing particular aspects of the Group's affairs. All
Board committees were established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions of the
CG Code, which are available at the GEM's website
(www.hkgem.com) and the Company’'s website
(www.wingfunggroup.com).
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 31 January 2018. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three members, namely
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric, Mr. Lei For and Mr. Lai Wai Ming, all of
whom are our INEDs. Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric is the chairman of
the Audit Committee, who holds the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rules 5.05(2) and 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment and removal of external auditor; review financial
statements/information of the Company and judgments in
respect of financial reporting; oversee the effectiveness of the
procedures of the internal control procedures and risk
management of the Group; and review the Company’'s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Five Audit Committee meetings were held during the Relevant
Period. Details of the attendance records of each Audit
Committee’s member are set out on page 20 of this annual
report. During the said meetings, the Audit Committee had
reviewed and made recommendations on various matters
including the annual, interim and quarterly financial results and
the respective financial reporting of the Group, status on the
internal control, financial control and risk management, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, the engagement of
consultant to the internal control function, discussed with the
management and the external auditor on the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the auditor’s
independence status of, audit and non-audit services provided
by the auditor and re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Audit Committee also reviewed and made recommendations on
change of external auditors and reviewed the scope of services
of and the fees to the newly appointed external auditor during
the Relevant Period. More information about the internal control
and risk management can be found on pages 28 to 29 of this
annual report.
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The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and was of the opinion that the said audited
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
compliance with the applicable accounting standards and the
GEM Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee members also
met the external auditor in the absence of the executive
Directors and management to discuss the audit related matters.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 31 January
2018. The Remuneration Committee consists of three members
and is chaired by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs in
accordance with the requirements under Rule 5.34 of the GEM
Listing Rules. This includes Mr. Lai Wai Ming who is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Choy Hiu Fai
Eric, both of whom are our INEDs, and our executive Director,
Mr. Chung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall
policy and structure relating to all Directors, senior management
and general staff of the Group assessing the performance of
executive Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’
service contracts and to ensure that none of the Directors or any
their associates determine their own remuneration.

remuneration

Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the
Relevant Period to review the remuneration structure of the
Directors and make recommendation on the adjusted
remuneration packages to the executive Directors. Details of the
attendance records of each Remuneration Committee members
are set out on page 20 of this annual report.

ERZESCENAKSBEBRE_T—NF
T-A=ZT - BULFENKERRAMTR
& IR/ LEAEERGAVHHREORE

HRAEFEARGEM E MR A RS -

RA R %%
BEBRENBRLT
%ﬁ%’f%ﬁ@%%ﬁ °

ZEENERNTEENE
CHESNE A BB B E - A

¥yMEEE

ARBRZTE—N\F—A=+— B R L% B
zeg(FZzEg)) - FTWEZEEH =%
B 4B - ABIEGEM £ 18 A 855.341% - /A
—BBIUIFNTEETETERELBRE DK
BRABIYIIFNTES  BEBUIIENTES
RERALE(FHEESER) BEBELEE
AERITEEELAE -

%ﬁ@ﬂézAmiﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁ?ﬁK’%lﬁﬁ%ﬁ
E SAEEERTBHEIMEETMRE

BERNESRHEER  TEITESEY
ESLA Ttt)&%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ&fwf\ ﬁﬂ’ﬂlﬁﬂ&ﬁ@%
EERHTMBMBEANS2EETE DN
B o

REBHEB  FWEZEg8T Tl:ﬁ//\auﬁzb/(
EHESHTNEBLFHESAZERBIT
ERHEE -FWEZEER EX/\E@ijaEﬁ
HRAFRPE208 -



Directors and Senior Management’s Remuneration

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5. of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2019 by band is set out below.

Remuneration Band (in HKS$)
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31 December 2018
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Nil to 1,000,000 £ £1,000,000 2 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001%1,500,000 — 1
Nomination Committee REZEBR
The Nomination Committee was established on 31 January ZAARR-ZE—N\F—A=+—HRILIEH

2018. The Nomination Committee consists of three members
and is chaired by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs in
accordance with the requirements under Code Provision A.5.1 of
the CG Code. This includes Mr. Lei For who is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and Mr. Lai Wai Ming, both of
whom are our INEDs, and our executive Director, Mr. Chung.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board annually by
reference to the factors as set out in the Diversity Policy,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
assess independence of independent non-executive Directors and
make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment and re-appointment of Directors with reference to
the Nomination Policy.

To enhance the nomination process for a director candidate, a
Nomination Policy was adopted as a guidance on the selection
process and board succession planning. The Nomination
Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from the Board
members, management, and professional search firms and may
review of resume and job history, conduct personal interviews
and verification of professional and personal references or
perform the background checks, etc. On evaluation of the
director candidates including incumbents and candidates
nominated by the Shareholders, the Board and the Nomination
Committee will take into account whether a candidate has the
qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc. that
can add to and complement the range of skills, experience and
background of the existing Directors and may consider the
following qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a
director candidate in recommending to the Board potential new
Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

o proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

o skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

o the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

o an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is
required of a member of the Board and the commitment
of time and energy necessary to diligently carry out those
responsibilities; and

o independence as required by the GEM Listing Rules.
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During the Relevant Period, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board by reference to the criteria as mentioned above, assess
the independence of the INEDs and make recommendation on
the re-election of the Directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 12 June 2019.

Summary of the Diversity Policy and its implementation can be
found on page 19 of this annual report. Details of the
attendance records of each Nomination Committee member are
set out on page 20 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Pak Hin Edward was appointed as Company Secretary
of the Company on 14 February 2017. Please refer to the
section “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” for his biographical information.

During the Relevant Period, Mr. Law undertook more than 15
hours of professional training as required by the Rule 5.15 of
the GEM Listing Rules to update his skills and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair of the state
of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
which give a true and fair view, it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies should be selected and applied
consistently.

The statement of external auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the independent auditor’'s report on pages 70 to 79 of
this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Board recognises the importance of good
internal control procedures including the procedures for
handling and dissemination of inside information and its
effectiveness in safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests. The
Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information or any use of such information for the
advantage of any individual. The Board also acknowledges its
responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and discharges its responsibilities to oversee
management in design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control system and its
effectiveness. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee
will review of the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control system and its effectiveness
and report to the Board on a regular basis and at least
annually.

The Group also established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group's risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry
and market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and
senior management are responsible for identifying the analysing
the risk associated with their respective function, preparing and
measuring risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk
management. More information about the principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group can be found on page 11 of
this annual report.

The Group has maintained internal control guidance covering the
Group's operation processes relating to subcontract, purchase
and expenditure and human resources, etc. and overseen their
operations by the senior management. In view of the size and
business nature of the Group, the Company does not establish
a standalone internal audit function but has engaged an
external independent consultant to
internal control systems (including financial, operational and
management systems, compliance and governance matters)
during the Relevant Period. No material internal control
deficiency was identified by the external consultant and the
Group’s management had worked with the external consultant
to enhance the Group’s internal control system.
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During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee, has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. The external internal
control consultant also reported to the Audit Committee on their
factual findings and recommendation for improvements on our
internal control systems over the abovementioned processes and
procedures.

The Group has implemented the necessary internal control
measures based on the recommendation of the external internal
control consultant. The external internal control consultant
confirmed such modified and new internal control procedures
are satisfactorily implemented upon the conduct of follow-up
review. The Audit Committee was satisfied and considers that
the Group's risk management and internal control procedures
are sufficient to meet the Company’s needs in its current
business environment and in terms of practicability.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a
dividend policy to achieve such goal.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy as a guidance on
the payment of the dividend. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
would take into account the Group’s results of operations,
earnings performance, cashflows, financial condition, future
prospects, as well as statutory and regulatory restrictions on the
payment of dividends, and other factors that the Board may
consider relevant. And the Board will review from time to time
for determination on proposed dividend with the above factors
taken into account, there can be no assurance that dividends
will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any given
period.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"”) is the external auditor of the
Company which was appointed by the Board on 13 December
2019 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) effective on 28
November 2019. The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the resignation, appointment
or re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, which is
subject to the approval by the Board and/or at the general
meetings of the Company by its shareholders. The Audit
Committee had considered various factors including the
independence, experience and qualification of PwC, their fee,
terms of engagement and staffing plan, and had resolved to
make recommendation to the Board for the approval of the
appointment of PwC as the auditor of the Company. Further
details about the appointment of PwC and the resignation of
Deloitte as auditor of the Company can be found in the
Company’s announcements published on 28 November 2019
and 13 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fee paid or payable
in respect of the statutory audit services and non-audit services
of the Group are as follows:
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

General Meeting

As one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at
Shareholders’” meeting on each substantial issue including the re-
election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at the
Shareholders’ meeting will be conducted by poll pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be published
on the GEM website (www.hkgem.com) and the Company’s
website (www.wingfunggroup.com). During the Relevant Period,
an AGM of the Company was held on 12 June 2019 to seek
the Shareholders’ approval on, among other things, the granting
the general mandates to issue and repurchase the Company’s
shares and re-election of the Directors. The Board member’s
attendance record is set out in page 20 to this annual report.

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 2
June 2020 and notice of the meeting will be sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the said
meeting.

Procedures and Right for Shareholders to Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") are subject to the
Articles, and the applicable legislation and regulation, in
particular the GEM Listing Rules:

1. If any one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company, such
Shareholder(s) may submit a written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3)
months after the deposit of such requisition.
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2. The Board should within 21 days from the date of the
deposit for the requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM to the held within a further 21 days. If the Board
fails to do so, the requisition(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may also make reference to Article 12 of the
Articles.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above
procedures may write to the company secretary of the Company
at Units 13 & 14, 9th Floor, Worldwide Industrial Centre, 43-47
Shan Mei Street, Fotan, the New Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director of the Company

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with the appointment or
election of Director(s), wishes to propose a person for election
as a Director at that meeting, he/she may lodge a written notice
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Units 13 & 14, 9th Floor, Worldwide Industrial Centre, 43-47
Shan Mei Street, Fotan, the New Territories, Hong Kong for the
attention of the company secretary of the Company. Detailed
procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director of the Company can be found on the Company’s
website (www.wingfunggroup.com).

Procedure for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at Shareholders’ meeting under the Articles
or the laws of the Cayman lIslands. Shareholders who wish to
make proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene an
EGM in accordance with the “Procedures and Rights for
Shareholders to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting” set out
above.
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Investors Relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders through various channels
including general meetings and corporate communications such
as announcements, quarterly, interim and annual reports and
circulars. Latest information of the Group is also available on the
Company’s website.

The Company has adopted its Shareholders’ communications
policy. Enquiries and proposals from Shareholders, investors and
all stakeholders are welcomed. Enquires to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Units 13 & 14, 9th Floor,
Worldwide Industrial Centre, 43-47 Shan Mei Street, Fotan, the
New Territories, Hong Kong. Such written enquires or proposal
with full name, contact details and identification must deposit
and send to said address.

Any enquires in relation to the Company’s shareholdings, share
transfer or registration may contact the Company’s share
registrar. Their contact details are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company first adopted its memorandum and articles of
association on 29 September 2016. Save for the adoption of the
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
of the Company for the purpose of the Listing on 31 January
2018, during the Relevant Period, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company. The
latest version of the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company is available at the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.
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About This Report

The objective of this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance for
the purpose of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the
Group’s ESG concepts and practices in achieving sustainable
development for the future.

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. An assessment on the applicability and
materiality of the relevant key performance indicators (“KPls”)
under the ESG Reporting Guide had been conducted.

Governance on ESG Aspects

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group’s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place. Our management are delegated the
responsibility of coordinating the implementation of the Group’s
environment, employment and service quality assurance policies.

ESG Management Approach

The Board leads and provides direction to management by
instituting ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their
implementation and monitoring ESG performance. The Board
continues to explore ways to further strengthen the ESG
governance of the Group. The Board reviews ESG affairs
regularly, including environmental protection, employment and
labour practices, operating practices, and community investment,
and implements appropriate measures to enhance the ESG
performance of the Group.

BRARE

ARF e RERIRE HERER]D
i&imﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁtﬁﬁl%% He ke
SAREN B ERNEERASEE
fﬁﬂi?}:—fﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ&% & R ER MY
SRER -

AIREETGEM LT AR BIMT 82207 4l IR 5% -
HEREABREESIMHEMNERERAT 28
R HEgREAMEESITERABEREAR
EE(ERESUEZDNEREREZTE
T8 -

BE HEREREE

EXe2RAEAKRENRE HekEhR
RENERTIF - EFSRAFERETAN
SEERR e RERTHNRAR AL #E
REEABAEENERE HERERRRE
BRAEEERR - AEEFEE\T%DJT**ZK
SENRE  BE REGERIBRE

RE HEREREEIX
BEECFRBHTERE e hERBERME
M BEBEERTAREERE e kEF
A EREEEEE -EESFERTMN
BAEERE HEREREEMNAE -E
EeTHEZRE HeREREHE B
RERE -EBELSTED EBEH XL
ERE VEBRBEBERBENRAEBNIR
BouekERKIR -

mE}

T



Wing Fung Group Asia Limited 35
Annual Report 2019

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environmental

The Group does not have any factory operations nor engage in
any operations that have a substantial effect on the
environment, aside from consumption of resources by the office
administrative operations. Nevertheless, the Group pays due
consideration and effort towards compliance with applicable
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and Macau, and actively
cooperates with the main contractor in meeting the
environmental protection requirements. The majority of the work
of the Group is conducted through its sub-contractors, whereby
as part of the project delivery, apart from confirming
construction quality, the project team will also monitor the
environmental performance of its subcontractors. One of the
measures includes regularly check to ensure that environmental
protection requirements imposed upon various parties, including
the main contractor, the construction site, and the Group, are
met.

Emissions management

As a subcontractor for the provision of supply, installation and
fitting-out services of MVAC systems for buildings in Hong Kong
and Macau, the installation activity does not cause any material
emissions or pollutions generated from the Company's
operations at construction sites.

In order to minimise the production of air pollutants by motor
vehicles, the Group promotes the use of public transport and
car-pooling.
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Air emissions 2019 (9) 2018 (g)

—E-NF —E-)N\F
REHENE (AR) (A52)
nitrogen oxides (“NOx") —ERm(TNOx]) 1,498 1,474
sulphur oxides (“SOx") —Ebm(sox)) 20 19
respiratory suspended particles (“RSP”) Al A F R F ([RSP ) 110 109
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Intensity —

Tonnes per

Greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes employee
RE —

BERBHEN YN U] M/ BT
Scope 1 — petrol consumption F1E — BEHRER 3.6 0.09
Scope 2 — electricity consumption %Ziﬁ — BESE 19.3 0.51
Scope 3 — other indirect emission £33 — Hi BN 1.8 0.05
Total emissions BHERE 24.7 0.65

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any
non-compliance issue about emission that would have a
significant impact on the environment.

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

The major source of waste comes from construction works,
whereby the Group abides by the regulations imposed by the
main contractor and the respective site. The staff and work
team follow on-site regulations on waste disposal, and would
always inquire with the project management team when any
difficulties are encountered. The project team would also ensure
the compliance with the applicable provisions of the Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and its subsidiary regulations, particularly the Waste Disposal
(Charges for Disposal of Construction Waste) and the Waste
Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations.

Although the operation does not involve handling hazardous
waste directly, we also establish policies and guidelines for both
our staff and our sub-contractors, for example, hazardous waste
is stored separately in special containers before collected by
licenced chemical waste collector. All materials and wastes
disposed at the work sites are collected by the authorised
collectors by the local government.

Waste production was mainly attributed to the discarded
packaging materials and domestic wastes of office. Therefore,
the waste disposed is immaterial and non-hazardous. During the
reporting year, the Group did not notice any non-compliance
issue about waste disposal.
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Use of resources

Driven by the belief in maintaining sustainability, the Group
strives to ensure efficient use of resources, including energy,
materials and auxiliary materials. It is the Group's policy that
material ordered is ‘just right’ for the intended project, and the
Group endeavours to employ excess material to reduce wastage.
Total electricity consumption for 2019 was 29,288 kWh (2018:
30,337 kWh) with an average consumption of 1,220 kWh per
office staff. Total water consumption for 2019 was 27 m?
(2018: 36 m?) with an average consumption of 1 m? per office
staff. The group did not encounter any problems in sourcing
water. With the implementation of environmental protection
measures, the consumption of electricity and water has dropped
by about 4% and 25% this year.

As the operation of the Group does not produce any tangible
products that require packaging during the Reporting Period, no
packaging materials were used in this regard.

The Group has implemented following schemes to reduce
consumption of energy and natural resources and the

production of wastes:

o encourage duplex printing and reuse single side printed

paper;
o idle electrical appliances are switched off;
o regular maintenance and repair for electrical appliances to

lower energy waste;

o reduce the use of disposable and non-recyclable products;
and

o regular maintenance and inspection of company vehicles.
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Environmental and natural resources

There are several environmental concerns that are of particular
relevance, affecting the materials and services used by the
Group, such as, air conditioning, refrigeration and heat pump
technologies which are increasingly being phased out in favour
of more environmentally friendly refrigerant gases with lower
ozone depletion potential and lower global warming potential.
The Group is determined to stay abreast of development in
resources and technologies that are beneficial to the
environment and higher requirements being imposed on MVAC
equipment and installation process. In delivering the works, the
project team would ensure that all services are conducted in an
environmentally responsible manner and ensure strict adherence
to the applicable laws in Hong Kong and Macau, such as the
Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 40 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Several other specific regulations directly related to the
operations, including the requirement of using lead-free solders
for copper pipes at freshwater Inside Services are specified in
the standard as stipulated in the Waterworks Regulations.
Another regulation that the Group complies with is the VOC
regulation imposed by the Environmental Protection Department.
VOCs (volatile organic compounds) are found in a wide variety
of everyday products such as solvent-based paints/coatings,
adhesives, sealants, printing inks, many consumer products,
organic solvents and petroleum products.
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Social
Employment

The Group promotes equal opportunity and opposes any form of
discrimination in the hiring process. Personal attributes like race,
religion, nationality, age or gender are not considered in the
hiring process. Besides discrimination, any act of sexual
harassment is also strictly prohibited. As at 31 December 2019,
the group had 2 executive directors and 165 employees
including 116 labour workers nominated by sub-contractors. The

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
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The Group welcomes any age range of people to join the Group
as long as they are keen to learn and participate. The male/
female composition ratio of the Group is approximately 9.4:1.
Although the Group treats all application the same irrespective
of gender, due to the laborious nature of the work involved at
construction sites the majority of potential and successful
applications tends to be male.

Compensation and dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain
talented staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically to ensure consistency with the employment market.
Laws and regulations on minimum wage and statutory social
benefits are followed. Dismissal is required to comply with
employment laws and regulations, and to follow the internal
policies and procedures, including policy on prevention of
dismissal purely on employees’ gender, marital status,
pregnancy, disability, age or family status.
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Recruitment and promotion

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent
recruitment strategy. Recruitment process includes application
for recruitment, description of position, collection of job
applications, selection, approval, and job offering.
Promotion is based on performance and suitability.

interview,

Working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare

Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare,
including social security benefits, mandatory provident fund, and
labour pension, are required to be in compliance with
employment or labour laws and regulations. Selected benefit
programs, including medical coverage, are also provided.

Equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group
endeavours to provide a fair workplace for employees and
follow the principles of equality and non-discrimination.
Recruitment, remuneration, promotion, and benefits are required
to be handled based on objective assessment, equal opportunity
and non-discrimination regardless of gender, race, age, or other
measures of diversity.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, discrimination or benefits and welfare.
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Health and safety

The Group is committed to strict compliance with all relevant
health and safety legislation. Although the works carried out by
the Group and its sub-contractors do not involve heavy
machinery or manual handling of hazardous materials, the staff
teams are exposed to relatively higher health and safety risks.
The project management team is committed to conducting on-
going risk assessments to identify and manage these risks, with
the objective of achieving the goal of zero accidents.

In most cases, the main contractor or the management of the
construction site would already have developed and deployed to
the staff teams sets of site safety plan and instructions which
requires compliance by all subcontractors. Management of the
Group, works to ensure that the subcontractors strictly observe
these safety plans and directives. Safety instructions for different
operations are well-communicated to the employees. In
accordance with the safety requirements of the Labour
Department and the main contractor, we provide the site staff
with qualified safety equipment, including safety helmets,
goggles and other necessary safety precautions to ensure the
occupational safety of the staff. Personal protective equipment
specific to the type of work being performed is made available
and distributed. The site foremen are responsible for ensuring
proper use and maintenance of the equipment. The Group
extends the considerations and assessments to the
subcontractors and the project team maintains close
communication to provide the staff and subcontractors with the
latest safety information.

With the effective implementation of the safety measures, no
fatal accidents and 2 reportable work-related accidents have
been recorded. A total of 200 lost days were reported due to
work injury. The accident rate per 1,000 workers was about
11.98 and zero in Hong Kong and Macau respectively. The
Group was not subject to any material administrative penalties
or fines for any breach of laws or regulations relating to the
provision of a safe working environment or the protection of
employees against occupational hazards during the reporting
period.
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Development and training

The Group is devoted to creating a learning culture among the
teams, so as to enable the staff to develop their career and
reach their goals. The Group therefore from time to time
arranges for the teams to attend external training, such as the
BIM induction course, ISO 26000 Guidance on Social
Responsibility course, and the Corporate Social Capital in
Practice workshop. Training is also provided to management
with the aims of maintaining and enhancing technical
knowledge and professional skills. Training for construction site
staff mainly includes safety precaution in the construction
industry and case study of past accidents.

Labour standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of forced and child labour.
The Group complies with relevant regulations and laws to
safeqguard the rights of our employees, and will not tolerate
labour exploitation. During the recruitment process, we verify
the age of applicants and the practice is extended to the
workers hired by our sub-contractors. The Group prevents hiring
child labour by conducting an identification check of every new
employee. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations regarding child labour and forced labour.

Supply chain management

The materials used by the Group are mainly pipes and other
fittings. To fulfil the Group’s responsibility to the society, a
guideline regarding environmental protections is set and
constantly reviewed by management. The guideline covers
disposal of wastes and sewage, uses of chemicals and
minimization of pollutions. All works and materials used by sub-
contractors have to comply with the policy.
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Sub-contractors are assessed continuously based on
performances, time of completion and services provided during
the retention period of the project. Suppliers are assessed
continuously based on delivery time, quality of materials and
after-sales services. To ensure timely delivery of materials,
geographical region of the supplier is also considered. As at the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had 154 qualified
materials suppliers and 89 qualified sub-contractors.

During the year, no major complaints on the quality of materials
used and the performance of works have been received.

Product responsibility

The Group is responsible to the main contractor for the works
the Group had completed, and had not encountered any
product recall or quality issue. Wing Fung HK was accredited
with 1SO 9001: 2008 (quality management) quality management
system standard for its quality management system since 2013.
The Group implements a series of quality control measures to
ensure the quality of works:

o Trainings are provided to our project management teams
and our subcontracted workers to ensure their
understanding of, and compliance with, our quality
standards;

o Onsite inspections and rectification are carried out at each
construction site. Immediate rectification measures would
be taken if any quality control issues are identified. Upon
rectification, we re-inspect the quality control issues to
ensure that such issues have been resolved; and

o We require sub-contractors to fully abide by our quality
control measures when performing work for our
construction projects.

The Group did not receive any significant complaints relating to
products and service during the year ended 31 December 2019.
Further the Group did not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that bring significant
impact to the Group concerning health and safety advertising
and labelling relating to products and privacy matters relating to
customers.
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Anti-corruption

Any forms of bribery, forgery and misappropriation of materials
including intellectual property, extortion, fraud and money
laundering are strictly prohibited. The staff manual provides
guidance on employees’ behaviours, for example the acceptance
of gifts and conflict of interests, to further enhance the
awareness of employees. The Group encourages staff to report
suspected corruption cases. The Whistle-blowing policy protects
the whistle-blower from possible retaliation. Reported incidents
will be thoroughly investigated and any misconducts would
result in disciplinary actions.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, The Group did not
aware of any non-compliances relating to dishonest and
corruption activities according to the Penal Code of Macau and
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (B I BABX 1§ 1) of Hong
Kong.

Community investment

The Group strongly believes in the concept of community co-
building to help create a coherent and harmonious community.
The Group intends to lead by example of demonstrating the
importance of community investment and encourage our staff to
participate in community initiatives through charity events,
volunteering events and donations.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREEEBERFE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Chi Keung (#%&34), aged 63, is our executive
Director, the chairman of our Board and the chief executive
officer of our Company. He is also the co-founder of our Group
in 1996. He was appointed as director of the Company on 29
September 2016. Mr. Chung is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall business strategies and overseeing the
business and operation of our Group. Mr. Chung is also a
director of all members of our Group.

Mr. Chung has over 44 vyears of experience in the supply,
installation and fitting-out of MVAC system. In March 1974, Mr.
Chung joined Young's Engineering Co., Ltd as an apprentice
and received training at the Major Air-conditioning Service
Department. Upon the completion of his apprenticeship, he
continued to work in the same department until July 1980. In
1987, Mr. Chung co-founded Wing Fung Engineering Limited. In
July 1996 and March 2007, Mr. Chung established Wing Fung
HK and Botop Macau, respectively and has been managing the
business and operation of the two companies in Hong Kong and
Macau. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Chung was a member of the
senior management of Dickson Group Holdings Limited
(currently known as Richly Field China Development Limited), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 313), and was responsible for managing the operation of
certain construction projects in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung owns 78.87% of the issued share capital of Wing
Fung Capital Limited, one of the substantial Shareholders, which
owns 430,500,000 Shares. Accordingly, Mr. Chung is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares owned by Wing Fung Capital
Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO").
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Ms. LAl Suk Fan (%3 Z¥), aged 57, was appointed as our
executive Director on 24 March 2017. She is primarily
responsible for overseeing the administration and human
resources functions of our Group.

Ms. Lai studied at Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute of the
Vocational Training Council on a part-time basis and was
awarded a certificate for accounting technicians in August
1998. In 1998, Ms. Lai obtained a certificate in Accounting-
Third Level issued by the London Chamber of Commerce and
Industry Examinations Board. Ms. Lai also joined a distance-
learning programme and received a Higher Certificate in
Business Management from the Hong Kong Management
Association in June 20009.

Ms. Lai has over 38 years of experience in administration,
accounting and human resources. Ms. Lai has worked as a junior
clerk at Teamlight Enterprises (HK) Ltd. from June 1980 to
March 1982, then she joined Shirtmaster Limited as a
purchasing clerk from May 1982 to February 1987. During June
1987 to July 1999, Ms. Lai has been working in Wing Fung
Engineering Limited and Wing Fung HK and her last position
was an administration officer when she left the companies in
July 1999. From February 2001 to June 2011, Ms. Lai worked at
Artsuc M&E Limited as the administration manager. In July
2011, Ms. Lai rejoined our Group as the administration manager
of Wing Fung HK.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOY Hiu Fai Eric (28 #8), aged 42, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and
is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Choy has more than 16 years of experience in accounting.
Mr. Choy obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance from the University of Hong Kong in
November 2000. Upon graduation, he joined Arthur Andersen &
Co, an accounting firm, in September 2000. Mr. Choy then
continued his career with PricewaterhouseCoopers as a senior
associate in the assurance and business advisory services
department in July 2002. In 2004, Mr. Choy joined Procon CPA
Limited as a managing director and he is now the head of the
company’s operation in Hong Kong and Shenzhen.

Mr. Choy has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2005. He was also
admitted as a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in the United States in June 2002. Mr. Choy
has been a Certified Tax Adviser of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong since 30 September 2010.

Mr. Choy has been an independent non-executive Director of the
Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited, a company
currently listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 145) since July 2016.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
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Mr. LEI For (RI%}), aged 42, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lei has more than 17 years of experience in investment
banking, corporate finance and investment and management
matters. Mr. Lei obtained his Bachelor of Social Science from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2001. He started
his career with L.P. Lammas Asia Limited from September 2001
to October 2002. After that, he worked in MasterLink Securities
(Hong Kong) Corporation Limited as an executive from
December 2002 to February 2005. In February 2005, Mr. Lei
joined Haitong International Capital Limited (previously known as
Taifook Capital Limited and Tai Fook Capital Limited) as an
executive, and he left as a manager in May 2007. From June
2007 to October 2010, he was appointed as the senior manager
and then the vice president of the corporate finance department
in ABCI Securities Company Limited. Mr. Lei then carried on his
career with Cinda (BVI) Limited as the corporate finance director
of Cinda International Capital Limited from October 2010 to
April 2011. In April 2011 to December 2016, he joined CIMB
Securities Limited as a director in investment banking. From
2017 to 2019, he joined Apastron Capital Limited with his last
position as managing director. Mr. Lei is currently the director of
Hongsong Limited.
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Mr. LAl Wai Ming (2 {&8), aged 44, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lai graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1997 and was awarded a Bachelor of Science degree
in Building Technology and Management. Then he obtained a
Master of Science in Real Estate from the University of Hong
Kong in December 1999. In February 2002, Mr. Lai further
obtained a diploma in building surveying from the College of
Estate Management in the United Kingdom, which is a long-
distance programme. Mr. Lai was also certified as a registered
professional engineer by the Engineer Registration Board in April
2006, and he was admitted as a member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and the Chartered Institute of Building in
December 2004 and May 2005, respectively.

Mr. Lai has over 21 years of experience in building service and
engineering. Mr. Lai joined Gammon Construction Limited in
July 1998 and he was the assistant project manager when he
left the company in November 2007. He then worked at
Hongkong Land Limited, a property investment, management
and development group listed in London, Bermuda and
Singapore, from November 2007 to July 2011 as an assistant
project manager. In July 2011, Mr. Lai joined a property
developer as a project manager in Hong Kong and he was a
senior project manager when he left the company in August
2017. In February 2018, Mr. Lai has joined a construction
company in Hong Kong as a project director.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following are the senior management team of the Group:

Mr. LAW Pak Hin Edward (Z#HIf), aged 33, joined our
Group and was appointed as the chief financial officer of our
Group on 12 September 2016, and as our Company Secretary
on 14 February 2017. Mr. Law is primarily responsible for
overseeing the finance and accounting functions of our Group.

In July 2010, Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from
the Australian National University in Australia. He was admitted
as an associate of the CPA Australia in August 2010 and was
further admitted as a full member in July 2013. Mr. Law has
more than 9 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Before joining our Group, Mr. Law has joined BDO Limited as an
associate in December 2010 and he was an assistant manager
when he left BDO Limited in December 2014. Then he carried
on his career with Ernst & Young in December 2014 and he
was a senior accountant in the assurance department when he
left the firm in August 2016.

Mr. CHAN Kai Ho (BREXZ), aged 35, was appointed as a
project manager at Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited in
January 2018 and primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing project execution and operation.

Mr. Chan obtained a Master’'s degree in Construction Law and
Dispute Resolution at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2018 and a Bachelor’s degree in Building Services Engineering at
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr. Chan has
more than 10 years of experience in engineering including the
experience in relation to MVAC services. Mr. Chan began his
engineering career as an assistant engineer with a Hong Kong-
based company specialised in construction and engineering
related services from July 2009 to July 2010. He then worked at
Paul Y. (E&M) Contractors Limited from 2010 to 2017 with his
last position being a project building services engineer.
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The Directors hereby presented their report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 29 September 2016
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) (the “Companies Law”) of the
Cayman Islands.

The companies now comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure
of the Group in preparation for the Listing. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Further details of
the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The Shares
were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 27 February
2018 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC systems
for buildings in Hong Kong and Macau. The projects of the
Group can generally be categorized into private sector projects
and public sector projects. A list of the subsidiaries of the
Company and details of their principal activities of are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes to the Group's principal activities during the
year.
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For discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”),
including a fair review of business, its key relationship with
employees, customers, suppliers and subcontractors, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business
and an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators, can be found in
sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out
on pages 7 to 15 of this annual report and the discussion of its
environmental policies and performance, can be found in section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.

The Group has established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group’s risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry
and market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and
senior management are responsible for identifying and analysing
the risk associated with their respective function, preparing and
measuring risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk
management. Details of principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group are set out on page 11 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
continued to engage an independent internal control consultant
to review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system and directly report to the Audit Committee of the
Company. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Internal Control and Risk Management” under the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s operations
were mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group
shall accordingly comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and Macau and the respective places of
incorporation of the Company and its subsidiaries. During the
year and up to the date of this report, the Board was not
aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operations of
the Group.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2019 by operating segment is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 80 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the
Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years, as extracted from the consolidated
financial statements and the Prospectus, is set out on page 172
of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December
2019 in the plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019. Details of the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 22(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to
approximately HK$37,885,000.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

U]

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, the underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO")), which were required to be notified the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including the interests or short
positions which any such director or chief executive was
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO)
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to standard of dealings by
Directors referred in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:
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Note:

The 430,500,000 Shares are held by Wing Fung Capital Limited,
which is an associated corporation of the Company and owned as to
7,887 shares representing 78.87% by Mr. Chung. Therefore, Mr.
Chung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Wing
Fung Capital Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Chung is our
executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and one of
the controlling shareholders of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had registered any
interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

@

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2019, the following persons/entities (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had or
were deemed to have taken an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the GEM
Listing Rules.

Number of the

FERRREMATARS - HER
NHREERFNREERRAE

BESFFA - ZE-nF+=A
_+ H - L/(T/\i/‘%ﬁf(%%&ﬁ

NAEIREITEHABRIN R (5 A E
et BEBEXERBEERE L
RAR B IRIE B FH M E 5P 5336105
BETHFEMNEaECMA  HREFE
A NRHE G EXVEE2NM E3D 2B HY
3 R GEM LT #R Bl 78 T 1% B 69 #
SORE °

Capacity/Nature of Shares held/ Long/short Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Interest interested in position Shareholding
R/ ®A
IR i A& B HEEME BRENROGBE # %R EREDHL
Ms. Chung Mei Lin Interests held jointly 430,500,000 Long position 75%
Joanne (“Ms. Chung”) with another person
(Note)
BEERELL HE -2 ALTHA A
(TEL L) AR (B2
Wing Fung Capital Beneficial owner 430,500,000 Long position 75%
Limited
Wing Fung Capital EmnEAA S=)
Limited
Note: Mt -

On 29 May 2017, Mr. Chung and Ms. Chung entered into a deed of
acting in concert (the “Deed of Acting in Concert”) to acknowledge
and confirm, amongst other things, that they are parties acting in
concert (within the meaning under the Takeovers Code) in respect of
Wing Fung Capital Limited, Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited and
Botop Engineering (Macau) Limited since their respective
incorporation. Pursuant to the arrangement under the Deed of Acting
in Concert, Mr. Chung and Ms. Chung are deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by each other by virtue of the SFO.

RZZE—+FRAAZ+TIB @EERELT
A —BITBRE ([ —BTBHRE]) - AR
N #E(E F 8 $F) ®Wing Fung Capital
Limited - KE TR (FR)ARQAALER L
BORF)-—ABRQAEAFMAILIAR -
%% 3k Wing Fung Capital Limited ~ 8% T2
(%ﬁ?’é)ﬁﬁﬁﬁa&%ﬁﬂiﬁ(fﬁﬁ)*/\ﬁﬁﬁ

RAR—BITHAL(EERUWEFAD - B

BAERBPERD RBR-—BTHZBET X
EF 488 5 A T2 8 22 R AR R IR U PR AR 19
HAEER -



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” above, had notified the
Company of an interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debenture of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any of its associated corporation a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of the Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, or had exercised any such rights.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, so far as the
Company is aware, the aggregate revenue attributable to our
five largest customers and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 91.5% (2018: 99.9%) and 51.9% (2018: 76.7%),
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019. Our Directors consider our Group's business
model is sustainable as we have been actively tendering for
projects and securing awards of contracts placed by various
main contractors. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
our Group was awarded 12 new projects, and had seen a
decline in our customer concentration. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
57.3% (2018: 50.0%) of the Group's total costs of services for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and the purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
16.2% (2018: 27.6%). Sub-contracting fees from the Group’s
five largest subcontractors accounted for approximately 56.4%
(2018: 49.8%) of the Group’s total costs of services for the year
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ended 31 December 2019 and the sub-contracting fee from the
largest sub-contractor included therein amounted to
approximately 22.4% (2018: 13.5%).

None of the Directors nor any of his/her close associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital), had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers, suppliers and subcontractors during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Further information regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.09 the GEM Listing Rules has been
received from each of the INEDs.

—ZT—N\F:498%) -
NFRERAPBEENDE
—\FE :13.5%) °

Mt ADBEHEZ
BA)B24% (=2

REBEZE_ZE-NAF+_A=+—RHIEFE"
MEARANEFTHHEHIMNETHEA(ER
RGEMEMRAD R (REZHRM -
BARRBIEEHTROS% N E)RAEERKR
EF HEBRDBEBERTHEE -

LI RSBEANBRBRR

AR R R KAL) B 5 B AN A R RE 25 1 fE
HTFARRBRROBG R IB R -

E=E

REBE_FT-NF+_A=+T—HLEFER
BEEAR %EIEHE’J%%ZZDT-
iﬂ"%%
EREE(EERITEAEE)
/B( SRt
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EBEELL
MBE A
RERLE
HEEWEEHZE - FPERFNEEMB

HWEMFE10 -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Updated biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 45 to 49 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and will continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by the Company or Director or the
Director has not been re-elected as a director of the Company
or has been removed by shareholders of the Company at any of
its general meeting or is disqualified from acting as a director of
the Company in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company. Each INED was appointed under a letter of
appointment for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date unless terminated by the Company or the INED
in accordance with the terms as set out in the letter of
appointment.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has or is proposed to have any
service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than the statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at every annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any
Director appointed pursuant to Article 16.2 or Article 16.3 shall
not be taken into account in determining which Directors are to
retire by rotation. A retiring Director shall retain office until the
close of the meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible for
re-election thereat. The Company at any annual general meeting
at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated office by
electing a like number of persons to be Directors.
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Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Further,
according to Article 16.3 of the Articles, the Company may from
time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution increase
or reduce the number of Directors but so that the number of
Directors shall not be less than two. Subject to the provisions of
these Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles, Mr. Lai Wai
Ming and Mr. Chung Chi Keung shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and elsewhere in this annual
report, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the
Director or an entity connected with the Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
contracts of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries or any contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

RIBAAFI6.215 EFSER I LR
ZEENALRES  WAFHESE=RA
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EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for making
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remunerations of the Directors
are determined by reference to the Group’s operating results,
comparable market statistics, the responsibilities and duties
assumed by each Director as their individual
performance.

as well

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of
Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor
any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the business of
the Group and any conflicts of interests which any such person
has or may have with the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company confirms that the non-competition undertaking of
Mr. Chung, Ms. Chung and Wing Fung Capital Limited, details
of which were set out in the Prospectus, has been fully
complied and enforced since the Listing and up to the date of
this report. The Board also confirms that there are no other
matters in relation to the aforesaid undertaking which should be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders and the potential
investors.
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INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at the date of this report, except for (i) the participation of
TC Capital International Limited (“TC Capital”) as the sponsor in
relation to the listing of the Company on GEM; and (ii) the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and TC Capital dated 21 April 2017, neither TC
Capital nor any of its directors, employees or close associates
had any interests in relation to the Group which was required to
be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of GEM
Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress for the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2019 is set out
below:

Business strategies as Implementation plan as
stated in the Prospectus

RREBFAZEERE

stated in the Prospectus

RRERFA2ERE

EREE NS

RAREBE  BROXMEABEBRER QA
([REBEAR]) AN R AGEM E T ETRE
A RN RARIHRMERNFEI AR A
T—EtFNA-+—HZAREMBEIN
AHEARETMNEE - BEXRBEBHEA
1 4 E A (AR 35 GEM | 1 38 Bl 86A.321{5
ANEARANRIBEBEASEE 2 #EE -

BE HEIEE LHES

REBE-_FT-NF+_A=1T—HLFE-
NN SR DY = PN T*WH\E%E\ HEK
fE @ A R AR £ & 5

EEECRERERERLR
TRESIBRERARZ 25 E BRKEE

mErmRASEE-—E—hE+-_A=1+—H
HECEBREBRER 2B

Actual business progress up to 31 December 2019

BEEZB-NF+ZA=+-BZEREBER

Acquisition of performance bond for new  Satisfy customers’ requirements for

The Group was awarded 12 new projects in the year ended 31
December 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the Group acquired
performance bond in the amount of approximately HK$6.1 million

to satisfy requirement of new projects.

projects performance bonds for new projects to be
awarded to our Group
RYERBERORES MEEFUBRTARENNIAENE

HRELEX

BE-_Z-NE+-A=+—RLFE AEEEETNRENE
B-mZ-Z—

NEFTZA=1T-RB ARERALEN6.1BEE

THENRES  ARRHER 2%
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Business strategies as
stated in the Prospectus

BRRERMMR 2 EH R

Implementation plan as
stated in the Prospectus

BRERMA2ERTE

Actual business progress up to 31 December 2019

EE-E-RAF+-A=+t-RAZRABREKER

Employment of additional staff and
provision of relevant training

BEEE T RREMAEE

Payroll for newly employed staff

BREINEGS

Sponsor project team to attend technical
seminars and occupational health and
safety courses

EORAERS MRS e RBER
FEZ2RE

Purchase building information modeling
BIM software

FEEREABLEIME T

Provide training to staff for the BIM
software

FBIME M m) & THRHLI5 7

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recruited 3
new junior to senior level engineering staff. Taking into account
the new recruits in 2018, the Company has incurred staff costs of
approximately HK$5.3 million as at 31 December 2019 for all 13
new headcounts in our project team and one administrative staff
recruited by the Group since Listing.
RBEZZ-NFTZAZ+T-HLEE KRAEFEHIY
BEBHRIRAE A R-Z-N\EFHENFEL RZT-A
E+ZA=+—-B XRARFEE L TRBENEEERN 2
BBEHEIR—ETRABELEE IR ALSIEEET -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has paid approximately
HK$7,000 to sponsor its engineering staff to attend technical
seminars and occupational health and safety courses organised by
third parties.
RZF-NE+TZA=+—8 AREE 47,0008 TAE B
HIBABZ2NMBEF=7ABNRNHFT e RBERFEZ2R

i2o

As at 31 December 2019, the Group acquired BIM software in the

amount of approximately HK$36,000.
RZE-NF+ZA=+—R AEEEREEBIME 436,000

i

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has paid approximately
HK$18,000 to sponsor its engineering staff to attend training for
BIM software.

REB-NFT-A=1T—H AEEDXN#18000ELEE)
HIRAE2HEBIMBA IS -
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Business strategies as Implementation plan as
stated in the Prospectus stated in the Prospectus
BREBAA 2 FBHK RREBMA2ERE

Actual business progress up to 31 December 2019

BEE-E-NF+-AZ+-AZRBREKER

Leasing of a new office and employment  Rental for new Macau office
of additional staff in Macau

HEHNBREERERENET VR DL

Payroll for newly employed administrative
staff in Macau

REMERTRBENT S

Purchase leasehold improvement,
purchase of furniture and fixtures for the
new Macau office
RINAFPERBERERE HEXK
MREEEE

The Group has leased a new office located in Cotai, Macau in
May 2018 and has utilized approximately HK$0.3 million for the
relevant rental expenses as at 31 December 2019.
AEERZZ— \FRAMENRBMBEOTRAT TR
E-NETA=ST-BRERRERXHBM03EEET

The Group has hired one administrative staff in Macau thereby
incurring additional staff cost of approximately HK$0.3 million as at
31 December 2019.

AEBCRRMER-STHET BRMR-S-NE+=A
ST-HEABNEIRANOIEEEL -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has purchased furniture and
fixtures in the amount of approximately HK$0.2 million for the
new Macau office.

RIZ-NETZA=1T-F AEEZRNRMREERER
MEEEFRBEN2EEET




USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were listed on GEM on 27 February 2018 pursuant
to the initial public offering of the Company. The actual net
proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the underwriting fees
and expenses related to the Listing) amounted to approximately

HK$27.2 million.

LT ARERERER

BREBERARBTERAREE
F_AZTEHEGEMLET - LT ERFE
FIEFRE(NBREHE R EMHEBRE)E
#2728 8%BTT -

Up to 31 December 2019, the net proceeds had been utilised as HBHZXE—

follows:

a?r%EEBzT&"JET@JFH :
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EXgmE

BRHRZF—N

~AET=A=t+—8 HBRE

Amount utilised

Actual net as at 31
proceeds December 2019 Balance
R=ZB-N&
t=A
BERFRE =t+-H
REFE BRASHE R
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Acquisition of performance bond  A&#TIEE B B4R
for new projects B 7.2 6.1 1.1
Employment of additional staff and 1252 8§ T % 12 { #8 #8
provision of relevant training gl 17.4 5.3 12.1
Leasing of a new office and MEMPER RILE
employment of additional staff in ~ JEFJ8& T
Macau 2.4 0.8 1.6
Working capital HiEER 0.2 0.2 —
27.2 12.4 14.8
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
applied the net proceeds according to the plans disclosed in the
section headed "“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus despite experiencing certain delay when compared to
the planned timeframe. While the Group continues to look for
new recruits, the Group has encountered continuous difficulty in
hiring experienced project management staff with the required
MVAC system services industry knowledge. The Company will
continue to adopt a prudent approach in its recruitment policy
and monitor the use of its proceeds for the long-term benefit
and development of the Group.

The Directors will from time to time assess the Group’s business
objectives and use of proceeds to ensure it is able to execute its
business strategies and cope with changing market conditions.

As at 31 December 2019, unutilised proceeds of approximately
HK$14.8 million were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong
and Macau.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Every Director shall be entitled under the Company’s Articles to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him or her as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal,
in which judgment is given in his or her favour, or in which he
or she is acquitted. Such provision was in force since the
adoption of the Articles upon the Listing Date and remains in
force as at the date of this report.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 28(i) to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The related party transactions set out in note 28(i) to the
consolidated financial statements had been terminated prior to
the Listing and therefore do not constitute connected
transactions of the Company as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company, 25% of
the Company’s issued capital was held by public as at the date
of this report.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) had been independent
auditor of the Company since the Listing. On 28 November
2019, Deloitte resigned as independent auditor of the Company.
On 13 December 2019, the Board appointed
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) to fill the casual vacancy
resulting from the resignation of Deloitte and to hold office until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company. Further details can be found on the Company’s
announcements published on 28 November 2019 and 13
December 2019. Save for the above, there were no other
changes in the Company’s auditor in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by PwC. PwC shall retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of PwC
as auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix
their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
16 to 33 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31
December 2019.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, our Group did not
make any charitable or other donations (2018: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 31 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the Board is not aware of any important
events after the reporting period that requires disclosure.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitlements to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM which is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 2
June 2020, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 28 May 2020 to Tuesday, 2 June 2020,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the
shares of the Company will be registered. Shareholders of the
Company are reminded to ensure all properly executed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
pm on Wednesday, 27 May 2020.

On behalf of the Board
Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
CHUNG Chi Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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To the Shareholders of Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wing Fung Group Asia
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set

out on pages 80 to 171, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and
o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Revenue recognition on construction contracts

o Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Key Audit Matter
HREZSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERERNNEEERERSEE

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

BB KW ok TR

Refer to notes 2.18, 4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

REaMBHmAME2.18 4K5-

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s —

revenue as recognised from construction contracts

amounted to approximately HK$190.5 million.
EZE-AFTZ ﬂ T—BLFEE E5EB

L;*:“:.“’JEEWE’J%Z FHN05EBE T -

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised over

time by measuring the progress towards completion of —

the Group’s performance obligations as set out in
respective contracts. The Group has used the output
method to estimate the progress of each performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference to the value
of construction works completed to date (as certified
by external surveyors or evaluated by internal project
managers) as a proportion of the total contract value
of the relevant construction contracts. In addition,
contract value may also be subject to changes due to
variations of works, claims or disputes with

customers.
BEANNWENERBTE EXRENEEESOME
J@?’]ffiﬁ’]nﬁ%?&fﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’m’ EEEFERR L

EEHMEBEERBORENEE BRERESRE
B e 55 T A1 (R 50 00 B 32 o Po 208 A 40
12T 1) (AR RS A 0K A B E L - 15 -
SOBENTEETRET FERRRPOUHT
2 -

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on
construction contracts included:

EEHEEANKaRANEFEHE

Obtained an understanding of the Group's control
processes, evaluated and validated key controls
over revenue recognition on construction
contracts;

TR BEEENEERRF AEAZER
Y 25 B R RO R B2 B

/FA—/\%)]

Enquired of the Group’s internal project managers
and checked to the internal project managers’
evaluation reports on the status of projects under
construction as selected on a sample basis to
evaluate the reasonableness of the progress
towards completion of the selected projects and to
identify if there are any variations of works, claims
or disputes with customers which may vary the
revenue recognition on the contracts;

M EXEEANBPEELEESALNAEIER KR
AR E S MBI RIEE AR - AR
HEFTHENTKNEESR A ERFBSERER
M Ti2ER] - FRIEEFLP WML AEEHIK
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERERNNEEEREREE

Revenue recognition on construction contracts (Continued)

L KW ak 1R (B

We focused on this area due to the significance of
revenue to the consolidated financial statements and
the significant management judgement and estimates
involved in the revenue recognition on construction
contracts.
EEEPRUEENRARKSHRETB®RRN
BEEUNEBEEANWRARRB L REKRNEEE A H &
&t e

—  Agreed the total contract value to the respective
signed contracts, variation orders or
correspondence with customers, on a sample

basis;
— WMEZEHREHEERABEEZSALH  TEBH]
SHREFSHBN

—  Verified whether the value of work has been
reasonably recognised as contract revenue by
checking to the completion status specified in
external surveyor’'s reports or internal project
managers’ evaluation reports, on a sample basis,
to the value of construction works as recognised
by the Group; and

— ZREIREBEERACAEERAGNNZ=  7&
RMEREINER SRR EAEIEB LB
WEMMMTHAMNE EEERIBNRETIRE
B &

—  Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external surveyors who issued
surveyor's reports for our selected samples of
construction contracts.

— FAERETEESORARE LN S ®E NN
REMMBETEN BHNREHEE -

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found
that the recognition of construction contracts revenue
based on the satisfaction of performance obligations
was supported by available evidence.
REMBITERRERF BSEARBENEETKE
MEESNNEEREAISER -
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Key Audit Matter
HREZSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERERNNEEERERSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

ESRENRNEREKEERE G

Refer to notes 2.9, 3.1, 4, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
R AT B HREAMNTE29-3.1 4 16%17°

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to
approximately HK$67.9 million and HK$30.0 million
respectively and the provisions for impairment loss
allowance on these trade receivables and contract
assets amounted to approximately HK$2.1 million and
HK$0.7 million respectively.
RZE-—NAF+ZA=+—H  BEEEMNEZEK
HEREGHNEERBES RN AKETIAEEITKR30.08
EETLZEEIRBERERGHNEENRAERFE
BEIRAK21BEATROTAEB T

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets
included:
ZEHEBRENESIRWHIEREG NEERBE G
B eiE:

— Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
relating to credit control, debt collection and the
ECL assessments (including the assessment on the
methodology of impairment and estimation of
expected credit loss allowance);

— THR -THERAREEGEEEZE WEREHE
EBEBTENEREZ(RETIHRERESE
EEBBEEMTHNAE)

— Understood and evaluated the management'’s
process and basis in grouping customers with
similar credit risk characteristics;

— TEHERIGEEESEBEUEERREHNE
PoBORF RER

—  Checked the ageing profile of the trade receivables
and contract assets as at 31 December 2019 and
the post year-end subsequent settlements from
customers, on a sample basis, to underlying
accounting records and supporting documents;

— WMERERZZE-NFTZA=T—BEIENK
HERENEENEREBEAREFPNELEBED
HieENEREettERIHHE:

—  Evaluated the reasonableness of the historical credit
loss rates as adopted by management in the ECL
assessment by checking, on a sample basis, the
key inputs, such as past settlement history and
subsequent settlement information, to the
underlying bank statements or bank-in slips;

— HHEBREREHBEEERNGRANBEREE
FEXEEAE HZERMEREXIEN ABE
(B EENTE IR RENER) EERERTA
N i



Key Audit Matter
HRELZSR
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERERNNEEEREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

ESEKNEREKEERE G (F)

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to assess lifetime expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets (the *“ECL
assessment”). For the ECL assessment, management
grouped trade receivables and contract assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and estimated the
expected credit losses allowance to be recognised by
considering the aging profile of overdue balances, the
repayment and default histories of different
customers, the historical credit loss rates, the post-
year end subsequent settlements from respective
customers, on-going business relationship with the
relevant customers and forward-looking information
relevant to customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances.
EEEERAEEVBREENFIRBICOEATEHE
ZRRRIBERAENEENFHEHREEBRRER
(TEHREEERNG]) REHREEERTEmS
EREKAAHEUEERREHNE S REFIER
AWBESBREBEEDBEBORBIER  FH
BEFNEREEREE  BEEEREE ARER
REEBRNEEEN  BIEEES 0B ELEHHE
NEEFPEERNEHRENEHAOAEER - K
AR THRANEMCEEEERE -

We focused on this area due to the significant
management judgement and estimates involved in the
ECL assessment for trade receivables and contract
assets.

EEEPRUHEBHRERESIRKRRBERENE
ENEHREEERT G REXNEEE HE REE -

— Understood the Group’s on-going business
relationship with the relevant customers through
discussion with management and corroborated the
information as provided by management to the
status of underlying projects, public information
about contracted parties or correspondence with
the relevant customers;

— FRETEENHRUTE SEEHEMAETERH
SEEBHEARZEEEBMERERNEMEEE
BORR BHEGTATNARENSERERT P
# A

—  Checked the arithmetical accuracy of the
calculations of the expected credit loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets; and

— BREAEEFRURFELAHNEERNEERR
BREOBMERE X

— Understood and evaluated the management’s
process in identifying the relevant forward-looking
information for the ECL assessment.

— TEETEEEEYRMNEREEHRFTHOE
BRI BRI AR FF ©

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found the
judgement and estimates as adopted by management in
the impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets are supported by available evidence.
REMBTERREF ESHREBEEHEHRKN
BEMAEHNEEREFGHERNAHE LG EAISER
STHF o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Htt&EHR

BERAREFAHEMERNAESRT HiWE
HERFRTAEENEHEN - Ribz i
ERREAEMBRERLESHIULE LOERE
fib ¥R & ©

==
e

BEYEANHBERELOTRLAEE
&R AT STH L MERRREMYRD

DK 4+ A
*Zuﬂ WA o

WESFEREAMBRRME  BFNEL
THEEMEN AEMEEEMBEHNES
HEAMBRRUBETEETRBETETN
BERFEEANT  UFFEERHERR

it o

k=13

HEESEERE TKH TERRZHEME K
HIRERERRL BEFAREZFE-B
FRM A EEFEHERS °

ESRBERZEENGEYBR
RARENERE

BERREZAEREEGHMAGRMNE
B EER REE R AR AR E R
ERERHEAEHEEMAAZIINA G
MBHER YR EFTAR/RLTHARMERE
NHERGEAVBEBRRNBER I FERRIFHL
BERMEMMERNERRAL -

ERmESAMBRRE EFTARE
ff BERENFEKERN YHREERSE
REFBANER(MER) - KRIFEFAER
® BEREFR RIFLLEE KERUZI
WEEMERATITORE  BAEERRAE
N ERERERNGFHE-



The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

¥8 Az B A R
EVZERAREE EREVKHmERE
MBI -

REEMBRES KRR AR
EHEMT

FNERRECERERR LEAMBRE
BN FHERANRFFRERMEMNEARS
ﬁﬁLI%ﬁ@G%iﬁEWFﬁ BT
“E%V%%ﬁi HER HTEBERE
BEENELR [ﬁﬂktZM\' FHHRE A
%Wﬁ@%ﬁ mﬁ$§%$ﬁﬁmmgﬂ
ERIEMATE P FEEEMER - SEHR
TEBEEXNZE BTRERERBESTER
%ﬁﬂﬁﬁmgﬁﬁﬁ—iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
By A48 BE 3% 3R o B8R SR RO AT JR A BRAF Sk R AR
fWERI K EEESEARBR TAZEER
ERBEAVBRRFEDOEERER - #
BRERERRAL

ERBBREBEE B ZBERMETEZN —
D EEER ﬁ%#IJI%ﬁIEA 1I%¢%@&EP

RREXREEE - FF

o HAEFHEAHMBRERANKIFR
R B MM E A RRAR R - F
F%%Hﬁ&#&%ﬁ%@kt /-3

GREMNBEEZEBERESFHNER
AL ER - mmw&&&a%%&»
BiE MEER REERAIEE
YRR #2E  - H E R BE 3 3R B b R Y

BEOA 8 AR PR B 3K BE 3% 3R ey 0 8
RMEBBMEAHERRAARES

o

s HHERZAEMAONIPES  ARS
REMEZERF EI#EEQ &
SEAMIEFOAREERER -

77



78

[
WM

;r

B

8N AR D
FEH

ol

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Y8 3 1% SR A

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chow Shiu Hay Antonio.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZEHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—-ZT—

NE+ZA=Z+—RALFE

2019 2018
—E-hE  —T-N\%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b i TER FAET
Revenue W e 5 190,486 200,635
Cost of sales 8 & KA 7 (145,242) (162,301)
Gross profit EF 45,244 38,334
Other income, net H AW AF &R 6 164 360
Impairment losses on trade receivables 2 5 & TE K& & 4
and contract assets BEEMREEE 7 (1,195) (372)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (17,490) (17,285)
Listing expenses FmAX 7 — (7,126)
Operating profit KeERA 26,723 13,911
Finance costs B 75 B 7R 8 (552) (872)
Profit before income tax Bk AT 18 i A % A 26,171 13,039
Income tax expense FrisfiA X 11 (4,860) (2,899)
Profit for the year FRRF 21,311 10,140
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FAEMEEBA
for the year, net of tax (E18) - MR FIAE
Item that may be reclassified to profit 7] BEEE 37 7 ME = 18 2%
or loss: mIE A -
— Exchange differences on — MEFINETBH
translation of a foreign MEH =5
operation 159 (620)
Total comprehensive income FREZERBHEE
for the year 21,470 9,520
Basic and diluted earnings BRAEAAFREBESR
per share for profit attributable BFAEABRGERB®
to the ordinary equity holders BEREXREE
of the Company (HK cents per B F (k&)
share) 13 3.71 1.84
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income A F#7 T 5 5 2 52 () s B PR 5 — (O B8

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B R IR R &R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-AEF —ZFE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FE& T FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment & E K% 14 1,177 1,317
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 15 812 —
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHEE 23 211 782
2,200 2,099
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 16 29,247 38,604
Trade and other receivables, H 5 N E b e
deposits and prepayments KB -EE2 Rk
TEI FRIE 17 67,814 49,382
Pledged and restricted bank 2 R R
deposits RITIF R 18 13,407 12,330
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 18 28,071 28,183
138,539 128,499
Total assets EEHE 140,739 130,598
LIABILITIES &f&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHEaE 23 730 730
Lease liabilities HE&AE 15 181 —
9211 730
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and retention payables B 5 ENRIER
RE® 19 23,180 28,491
Other payables and accrued H B HIBER
expenses fEETE A 20 3,911 4,783
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 645 —
Current income tax liabilities BB B aE 3,517 2,802
Bank borrowing H|ITE K 21 6,451 13,138
37,704 49,214
Total liabilities BEHE 38,615 49,944

Net assets BEERE 102,124 80,654




82

[
W g
i}

;r

8N AR D
FEH

ol

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BRI &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZEFE-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
ok TET FHET

EQUITY EE
Share capital % X 22 5,740 5,740
Reserves it 1 96,384 74,914
Total equity BRER 102,124 80,654

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 171 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
16 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

LA 456 B 5K 00 5% e 52 ) B Y B 5 — D B

uﬁ

%80%.‘2%17155’]5*‘\ﬁﬁ‘%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%A
R-ZZT-_ZTF=A +/\ B e Re A T 3
HATATREREE

Chung Chi Keung Lai Suk Fan
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERBEBE R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Exchange
Share Share translation Capital Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R B & B EXGERB BAEE Hit G REBEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THET FET TEL THET FET TEL
(Note 22(a))  (Note 22(b))
(WriE 22(2)  (WriE 22(b))
Balance at 1 January 2018 R=-EB-N\¥-A-H
as originally presented W (R25) 8 12 (157) 11,676 (12,941) 23,099 21,697
Changes in accounting policy BHBREY
- HKFRS 9 — BBUBREER
£95 — — — — — (1,122) (1,122)
Changes in accounting policy GHBRE
- HKFRS 15 — BB BREER
155 — — — — — 3,692 3,692
Restated balance at R-ZE2-N\E-HA-H
1 January 2018 EERIFS- 8 12 (157) 11,676 (12,941) 25,669 24,267
Profit for the year FRERM — — — — — 10,140 10,140
Exchange differences arising on REBNEBEE
translation of a foreign operation MERZERE — — (620) — — — (620)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2MHE (F8) KEHE
for the year — — (620) — — 10,140 9,520
Transactions with owners in their REBAUEEAZH)
capacity as owners HR5
Capitalisation issue of shares BARCETRR (Wit22)
(Note 22) 4,297 (4,297) — — — — —
Issue of shares by public offering and ERAFEE REE%T
placing (the “Share Offer”) R ((RHEE]D
(Note 22) (M#22) 1,435 53,095 — — — — 54,530
Costs incurred in connection with RETADARMDAESE
issue of shares of the Company HRAK — (7,663) — — — — (7,663)
Total transactions with owners REZERBINEEEA
recognised directly in equity REBE 5,732 41,135 — — — — 46,867
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\%F
+ZRZ+-BM0E&E 5,740 41,147 (777) 11,676 (12,941) 35,809 80,654
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Exchange
Share Share translation Capital Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
B B2 E EifR BEARE Hitv i o RERF @zt

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TERT TER TER TERT
(Note 22(a))  (Note 22(b))
(Hfit22(a)  (Bit22(b)

Balance at 1 January 2019 R=Z-NE—-A—-H
M8 5,740 41,147 (777 11,676 (12,941) 35,809 80,654
Profit for the year Syl - — — — — 21,311 21,311
Exchange differences arising on REBNEBEE
translation of a foreign operation MELESE — - 159 — — — 159
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENEAT
for the year - — 159 - — 21,311 21,470
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-B-NF
+-A=+-BW&Es 5,740 41,147 (618) 11,676 (12,941) 57,120 102,124

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should A 474 # %5 8 B 3% & 38 [B) B8 I BT ok — G153
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—2-nE  —T-N\%F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
ks FTER FAET
Cash flows from RETEHRERS
operating activities RE
Cash generated from/(used in) e/ (FTA)
operations Be 25(a) 12,189 (16,747)
Income taxes paid B TER (3,587) (3,981)
Net cash generated from/(used in) &£ & EE TS
operating activities (AR FE 8,602 (20,728)
Cash flows from investing REZBHMBES
activities wE
Placement of pledged and restricted ¥ E & &
bank deposits PR R 1T (1,077) (7,822)
Release of pledged and restricted fR bR B &
bank deposits Z R B RITER — 1,217
Payments for plant and equipment HeEs RN R (230) (1,371)
Interest received 2 FHE 195 277
Net cash used in REZBHMARES
investing activities e (1,112) (7,699)
Cash flows from financing METERAERE
activities mE
Proceeds from the issue of shares by i@ 17 3 & 317
Share Offer P& 1 B BT 15 3R 38 — 54,530
Share issue cost paid B I AT RCAR — (7,663)
Repayments of a bank borrowing BEBITER (6,687) (6,347)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEMERE 25(c) (488) —
Interest paid B F B (482) (812)
Net cash (used in)/generated METHE (A

from financing activities EREFEE (7.657) 39,708
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,27“? i /m 2‘:2

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
o &t FET FAT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%f’%
and cash equivalents W), R E (167) 11,281
Cash and cash equivalents at i%ﬂfﬁi&fﬁﬁ
beginning of the year ﬁf“f% 28,183 17,212
Effects of exchange rate changes on [EXRZHHIR & N
cash and cash equivalents iﬁﬁﬁf’i%éﬁ%%ﬁ 55 (310)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FXRIR & KEE
the year ZEM 18 28,071 28,183

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read A E&R& IR & 7% = 5% FE & [B B I M 5 — 0158
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

General information

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 September
2016 as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company'’s registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business is Units 13 & 14, 9th Floor,
Worldwide Industrial Centre, 43-47 Shan Mei Street,
Fotan, the New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of supply, installation and fitting-
out services of mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning
(“MVAC") system for buildings. The Company’s immediate
and ultimate holding company is Wing Fung Capital
Limited, a private company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company listed its shares on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 February 2018 (the
“Listing”).

—REH

geEEDIMBRARTERRRAD R
—E-RXFANAZTHALERERAESE
E—NAR—FEI3REFENEREE
(e REFTRAEHSTMA L
REBRERERAA - AAFRGEMHEE
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&L H43-475R IR B T ¥ 09113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

—“NE+-A=+—HLFE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. The comparative figure of
due to related parties have been
reclassified to trade payables to conform with the
current year presentation.

amounts

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following
standards, amendments and interpretation for
the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing on 1 January 2019:

Amendments to Annual Annual Improvements

Improvement Project 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment,
HKAS 19 Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in

HKAS 28 Associates and Joint
Ventures
HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments

Except as disclosed in Note 2.2 for the
adoption of HKFRS 16, the adoption of the
above new standards, amendments and
interpretation did not have any significant
impact on the significant accounting policies of
the Group and the presentation of these
consolidated financial statements.

2 FESHEREHEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards
and revised conceptual framework that are
not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and revised conceptual framework
have been published and are not mandatory
for 31 December 2019 reporting period and
have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to Definition of Material’
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual
Financial Reporting 2018 Framework for Financial
Reporting’
Amendments to HKAS 39, Hedge accounting’

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

! Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 Date to be determined

The Group will apply the above new standards,
amendments and revised conceptual
framework when they become effective. The
Group anticipates that the application of the
above new standards, amendments and revised
conceptual framework have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies and disclosures

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively
from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as
permitted under the specific transitional provision in
the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 January 2019.

The new accounting policies are disclosed in Note
2.20.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under
the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019.
The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January
2019 was 5.4%.

2 FESHEREHEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

2

—hE+ZA=+—RHLFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics

o relying on previous assessments on
whether leases are onerous as an
alternative to performing an impairment
review — there were no onerous

contracts as at 1 January 2019

o accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1 January 2019 as short-
term leases

o excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application, and

o using hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options
to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at
the date of initial application. Instead, the
Group relied on its assessment made by
applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease for contracts entered into before the
transition date.

ST ERERME (&)

22 BRNBERKEERSH (H)

(i)

P ER F 89 BT 17 € H 75 %

AEBBRERBEBYB
WELEBFI65BEAT

==

IR AT EREERX

e HEAAEHALREE
M—AAHEERE—
H RE 3R K

. BEANHEERE
B 0 5 R 0 £
MR EEN —
RoE—nE—A—
A S A 1 2

. B-_FE—-—NF—H—
E%TE%JWQM
AmgElansm
e

o  HEMRERBHN
EREEER T
WEERAN R

. EREFTREERK
BIFTHE R RS
AHFEE -

REBENEENENTE
AHRVAEREHBRES
BERseslE m2h
BEERE S EBE
175 M2 e AR EE L

ELEEHEELNFTE
NETBEEBHAEI LN
BHY o



2

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited

Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Measurement of lease liabilities

2 FESHEREHEE)

22 BNERERBBEEREE (H)

(i) HERE;E

HK$'000
FHER
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZZE—-)N\F
as at 31 December 2018 TZA=+—HBEE
Y48 & TH B A 698
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental £ & X R B B&AMA A
borrowing rate at the date of initial 2 E A KRR
application 662
Less: Short-term leases not recognised B AERABEMER
as liabilities HE (255)
Add: Adjustment as a result of a different 1@ &R IFEN TR EIE
treatment of termination option FEEBHHRAE 342
Lease liabilities recognised RZZE-hE—HAF—HER
as at 1 January 2019 (Note 15) WHEEEE (HL15) 749
Of which are: Hep
Current lease liabilities REBHAEAE 365
Non-current lease liabilities EREHEAR 384
749
Measurement of right-of-use assets Giii) FTEFHELE

The associated right-of-use assets for property
leases upon the date of initial application were
measured at the amount equal to the lease
lease
required an
adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the

l[iabilities. There were no onerous
contracts that would have

date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEBTEHEME(E)
policies (Continued)
2.2 Change in accounting policies and disclosures 22 EFBEREEEREE (E)
(Continued)
(iv) Adjustments recognised in the consolidated (iv) BRASEBHBHEERE
statement of financial position on 16 Z R E BN KR
adoption of HKFRS 16 8 38 1Y 75 B
The following table shows the adjustments TRIWTHKRZE—-—NF—
recognised for each individual line item as at 1 A—B#&E5R1EE #R
January 2019 (line items that were not MARE(BESZENERE X
affected have not been included). EBRETENR) -
As at
31 December
2018 Effects of As at
(As originally  the adoption 1 January 2019
presented) of HKFRS 16 (Restated)
RZZ-N\F KHERE R-ZT-hE
tTZA=+—-H HHB/EEL —A-H
(MREL5) HIGHKHTE (RESZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
Consolidated statement of REMBEMRRE (%)
financial position (extract)
Non-current assets (RBEE
Right-of-use assets CREEE — 749 749
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Lease liabilities HEGE — (384) (384)
Current liabilities nRBEE
Lease liabilities HEGE — (365) (365)

The adoption of HKFRS 16 has no impact on
the retained profits on 1 January 2019.

RNEBM B RELERE
1 B —F— NEF—
A—B®&Fm A ERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

Subsidiaries and principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’'s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a net basis within other income,
net.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

24

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
controlling shareholder and executive director of the
Group who make strategic decisions. Details refer to
Note 5 of the financial statements.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives or, as follows:

Motor vehicles
Furniture and office equipment

4 to 5 years
5 years

2.6

2.7
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’'s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

in circumstances
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised costs are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. If collection of the amounts
is expected in one year or less they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. The Group's
financial assets at amortised cost comprise of
trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, pledged and restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.9
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest
method.

Impairment

The Group assess on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been significant increase in
credit risk.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment (Continued)

v)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applied the simplified approach
permitted under HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables and deposits, it is
measured at either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

For cash and cash equivalents, pledged and
restricted bank deposits, it is also subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, yet
the impairment loss is immaterial because the
Group only transacts with reputable
international financial institutions with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over three
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10

2.12

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial
position where the Group or group entities currently
has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for
settlement within 30 days to 45 days and therefore
all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
financial institutions with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of
financial position.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13

2.14

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new share or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
and other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is
the tax payable on the current period’'s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
income tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the

consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial

recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are
not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current income tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred income tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current income tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and
make good obligations are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same. Control is transferred
over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if
one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

J the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’'s
performance in transferring control of goods or
services.

Employee benefits
(a) Pension schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

(b) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the service. All short term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset. A
liability is recognised in respect for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 219 EEEF (F)

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination.

(d) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholder. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.

2.20 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where the
Group is the lessee. The new policy is described
below and the impact of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a
significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group as
lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as right-
of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date
at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of property for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for
leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liabilities for each period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)

2.21

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. Payments associated with
short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
or operating companies’ shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of

financial

risks:

interest rate risk, credit risk and

liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
approach focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(1)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to variable-rate bank
balances and restricted bank deposits as
disclosed in Note 18 and bank borrowing
as disclosed in Note 21 due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to the Group’s fixed-rate pledged bank
deposits as disclosed in Note 18. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
interest rates on bank balances and Hong
Kong Prime Rate quoted by the lending
bank arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowing. The
Group aims at keeping borrowing at
variable rates. The Group currently does
not have a policy on hedging interest
rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowing. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at each reporting period end
was outstanding for the whole year. A
100 basis point increase or decrease is
used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. If interest rates
had been 100 basis points (2018: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$54,000 (2018: decrease/increase by
HK$110,000).

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for the exposure to interest rate risk on
the Group’s bank balances and restricted
bank deposits as the directors of the
Company consider that the exposure is
minimal.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency risk
mainly arises from the fluctuation of HK$
against the functional currency of the
relevant company now comprising the
Group. The carrying amounts of the
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities are as
follows.
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The management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure to mitigate the
foreign currency risk. A subsidiary of the
Company has adopted MOP as functional
currency and has foreign currency
denominated monetary assets
denominated in HK$. As MOP is pegged
to HK$, the Group’s foreign currency risk
exposure is not considered to be
significant.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk arises from bank balances and
pledged and restricted bank deposits, as
well as credit exposures to the
customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions.

The credit risks on bank balances, and
pledged and restricted bank deposits are
limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
The management of the Group considers
the probability of default is negligible
and accordingly, no loss allowance was
recognised.

For trade receivables and contract assets,
in order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to
overdue debts. In addition, the Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to assess expected credit loss model for
individual debt.

recover
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Risk management (Continued)

For other receivables and deposits,
management of the Group makes
periodic individual assessment under
12-month expected credit losses on the
recoverability of other receivables and
deposits based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The
management of the Group believes that
there is no material credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the
past.

The Group has significant concentration
of credit risk in a few customers. As at
31 December 2019, the outstanding
balances from the five largest customers,
which have been included in trade
receivables and contract assets,
amounted to HK$93,184,000 (2018:
HK$84,490,000) in aggregate, which
represents approximately 98% (2018:
98%) of the total trade receivables and
contract assets. Except as disclosed in
3.1(b)(ii) over the impairment of a single
customer with doubtful credit risk, in
view of their credit standings, good
payment record in the past and long
term relationships with the Group and
taking into consideration of forward-
looking information, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit
risk is not high.

Other than the above, the Group has no
other significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has five types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected
credit loss model:

° trade receivables;
. contract assets;

° other receivables and deposits;

o pledged and restricted bank

deposits; and

° bank balances as included in cash
and cash equivalents.

For bank balances and cash, pledged and
restricted bank deposits, it is also subject
to impairment requirements under HKFRS
9, yet the impairment loss is immaterial
because the Group only transacts with
reputable international financial
institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For other receivables and deposits, the
Group has taken into account the
historical default experience and the
future prospects of the industries and/or
considering various external sources of
actual and forecast economic
information, as appropriate, in estimating
the probability of default of each of the
other receivables and deposits, as well as
the loss upon default in each case. The
directors considered that the lifetime
expected credit loss allowance for other
receivables and deposits is insignificant.

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime expected credit
losses.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets. The expected credit losses
below also incorporate forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HM¥EREE (&)
31 HMERBEZR(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) B ELEERE(E)
Trade receivables and contract assets BoRWAREBELED
(Continued) BEE)
The Group has separated a customer NEEBETHEBREE
with doubtful credit rating from the EEEE —Z ARE
other customers with low risk credit EFEEIIANRPHEE
rating in the determination of the f EEREREEFR
expected credit losses. On that basis, the MEFESRH - RIEE
loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 g8 5 EIRRIB
and 2018 were determined as follows for REHEEEBEETNRN
both trade receivables and contract E-hhER_ZE—N
assets: F+-_A=1+—HH
EEBEET
Trade receivables as at Weighted
31 December 2019 average Net
R=ZB-NI%F Gross loss rates Loss  carrying
+=—B=+—H®#® amount fN#E¥3Y allowance amount
B 5 ERRE wmaE BiEE HERE BEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FERT FET
Customers with ®F
— Low credit risk —REERR 66,168 0.5% 344 65,824
— Doubtful credit risk —REREERR 1,771 100% 1,771 —
67,939 2,115 65,824
Trade receivables as at Weighted
31 December 2018 average Net
RZZE-NF Gross  loss rates Loss carrying
+=ZA=+—81/ amount MY allowance amount
B 5 W IE e BRE EBEEEHE EREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT F#&T FHEIT
Customers with =P
— Low credit risk —REERR 46,998 0.03% 18 46,980
— Doubtful credit risk —REREERR 1,764 65% 1,147 617
48,762 1,165 47,597
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HEERERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥ERMREZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) =EEEPE (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) HEEEWREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets BEEWRTFELEEY
(Continued) BE (&)

Contract assets as at Weighted
31 December 2019 average Net
R=ZZ—-NIF Gross loss rates Loss  carrying
+=ZA=+—H®W amount ¥ allowance amount
ERNEE wE BEEX HERE EREHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FET

Customers with =P

— Low credit risk —REERR 29,277 0.1% 30 29,247
— Doubtful credit risk —REEERR 688 100% 688 —
29,965 718 29,247

Contract assets as at Weighted
31 December 2018 average Net
RZE—NF Gross loss rates Loss carrying
+—A=+—0H8 amount IS allowance amount
EREE Fek) BEE BIEEE KREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT

Customers with BE

— Low credit risk —EEERR 38,385 0.05% 21 38,364
— Doubtful credit risk —REREERR 686 65% 446 240

39,071 467 38,604
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HEZ-ZT—

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Financial assets are written off when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are
over three years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the directors of the
Company, who have built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the

management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group

manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

3

—hE+ZA=+—RHLFE

Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the consolidated
statement of financial position date to the

contractual
disclosed

maturity date.
in the table are the contractual

The amounts

undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the

BHERERE (&)

31 MBEAEBREE(E

() nEBEZEE(H)

TREAFENOHF AR
WA S M BRI K
HEBEANIHANR
R HARR o0 AX AE BE A B HA 4R

A HEITH

DT e TREER

HEAEEHNARFRBE &R
E-HRMBFYETIE
Ko R12M8 A A E ,HH B 4

impact of discounting is not significant. HREREREEEL
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and 2 2 and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
SME 122 2855 SEME st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
At 31 December 2019 R=F-A%+=A=t+-H
Trade and retention payables BHERAFAREMRES 15,924 7,256 - — 23,180
Other payables Hith BN HE 1,653 - - - 1,653
Bank borrowing RITER 6,623 - - - 6,623
Lease liabilities HERE 680 190 - — 870
24,880 7,446 - — 32,326
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
RERH
LHE 1825 2855 SEM E 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET THT TEL TET
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-NE+=ZA=t-8
Trade and retention payables EHEMNFBREMARES 22,720 3,270 2,501 — 28,491
Other payables Hfth B 1,201 - — — 1,201
Bank borrowing RITER 13,681 — — — 13,681
37,602 3,270 2,501 — 43,373
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HEZ-ZT—

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1

(c)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowing with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less
than 1 year” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2019, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
this bank borrowing amounted to
approximately HK$6,623,000 (2018:
HK$13,856,000). Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the bank will
exercise its discretionary right to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank borrowing will be repaid in one
year (2018: two years) after the end of the
reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank
borrowing agreement, details of which are set
out in the table below:

fra MBS EmR M R

NETZA=+—HLFE

MEEREE (&)
3.1 HM¥ERKBEE(E)
() REELERE (&)

ANEBHBE S R

BERERGFRORITE
RBATRERK DRI
HEAER R_F—NF
TZA=T—B8 ZER
TERENRKBERASBE
7% #96,623,00008 (= &
— JU % :13,856,000/%
TT) o BERBANEE M
Ao EFRR/RITAK
AREGITEENEEENX
BRER-BEZRR R
RIRTTERBEAEATAE
EXBEH BRERTEER
BRBERARE—F(=F
—N\F ME)EE FFB
HNTX:

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowing with a repayment on

demand clause based on scheduled repayment

HEADH — REZRREERRNBIEN RERTERY

Total
Less than undiscounted  Carrying
1year 1-2years 2-3years cash outflows amount
RERBER
DRE 1-2% 2-3%F B BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TER TER TER TER
31 December 2019 —T-NE
+ZA=+—H 6,623 — — 6,623 6,451
31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+ZA=+—H 7,229 6,627 — 13,856 13,138

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

i )% B A 3 B B 1 R0
%X%EMﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁT
— BIA EFTEBEIEOT A&
%WEE%E@W$IE
WEme g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group manages capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which include the bank borrowing as
disclosed in Note 21, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity of the Group, which
comprises share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost of
the risk associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debts or
repayment of existing debts.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, trade payables, accruals and
other payables, amounts due to related companies,
bank borrowing and lease liabilities are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(a)

Construction contracts

Management measures the progress towards
completion of the Group’s performance obligations
based on output method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of measuring the progress of
each performance obligation satisfied over time by
reference to the value of construction works
completed to date as a portion of the total contract
value of the relevant construction contracts. The
management’s estimate of revenue and the progress
of construction works requires significant judgement
and has a significant impact on the amount and
timing of revenue recognised.

Management periodically measures the value of the
construction works completed for each construction
project based on results as certified by external
surveyors or evaluated by internal project managers
and estimates the value of works completed but yet
to be certified at the end of each reporting period.
Management estimated the value of uncertified
works based on surveys carried out by internal
project managers and revisited with reference to
certification subsequently performed external
surveyors. Management’s estimation of the value of
the works may also be subject to changes due to
variations of works, claims or disputes with
customers. The Group regularly reviews and revises
the estimation of construction contract progresses
whenever there is any change in circumstances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

—hE+ZA=+—RHLFE

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to
determine the expected credit loss for trade
receivables and contract assets. Significant
judgement is exercised on the assessment of the
lifetime expected credit losses for the trade
receivables and contract assets (i.e. ECL assessment).
For the ECL assessment, the Group has grouped
trade receivables and contract assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and estimated the expected
credit losses allowance by considering a wide range
of factors such as aging profile of overdue balances,
the repayment and default histories of different
customers, the historical credit loss rates, the post-
year end subsequent settlements from respective
customers, on-going business relationship with the
relevant customers and forward-looking information
that affecting the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances. At every reporting date, the
expected credit losses are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.
Details of the assumptions and inputs used are
discussed in Note 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Revenue and segment information

The Group’s revenue are derived from the provision of
supply, installation, and fitting-out services of MVAC
system for buildings to external customers in Hong Kong
and Macau during the year. For the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment, the chief
operating decision maker reviews the overall results and
financial position of the Group as a whole prepared based
on the accounting policies as set out in Note 2. The Group
has only one single operating segment and no further
analysis of this single segment is presented.

WaEkoHER

AEENRZSERAEFARET B RRM
SMERE P IS T IR R OB R & =
ARG HE  2RXEKERT -HE
ﬁ“%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi TREER
RABHAEENBERE M HNK
nORBW 2B S5t BRR R
AEERAE—RENHRAELT
ZE—DEHEM DT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Revenue from construction contracts BEAHKRE 190,486 200,635
The Group’s revenue is recognised over time for the years RBE_Z-—NWEFERZT-N\F+=
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. A=1+—BILFE - K& 55 HE®
Rz o
Unsatisfied construction contracts RABTEESED
The transaction price allocated to the remaining HWZE— hi&f T—N\NF+=-A
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially Zt+—HASREEHTRENEMT CRERK
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the HE D AREK) IR 5B KR = H
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: FEEARSEI 0T ¢

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—2-nE  —T-N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T FHET

Revenue from construction contracts TR ELE
to be recognised & K=

— Within one year — —FR 275,053 151,606
— More than one year — BB —F 101,218 25,653
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

5 Revenue and segment information 5 WakoBER (E)
(Continued)
Geographical information i 32 & R
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's TREIIRBEEPUBAES RHR
revenue from external customers based on geographical SENEEP W=D

location of the customers:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—RHLEE

2019 2018
—E2-hEF ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong B 152,916 91,529
Macau R FT 37,570 109,106
190,486 200,635
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of TRAREEMEMNMBUES M
non-current assets, excluding deferred income tax assets, FERBEE(TREEEMEHEE)
analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are WAREE DT
located:
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong B 1,031 861
Macau ! 958 456

1,989 1,317
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Revenue and segment information 5

(Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total

revenue of the Group is as follows:

Wz R o & E R (&)

TEEFESN

RKAARNEBTEHEIKRZFI10% A EH
BEPWFWT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FAT

Customer A BEFA 38,617 153,960
Customer B EFB 98,808 23,466
Customer C EPC 19,058 N/AY 7~ 3 A

! Revenue from the customer is less than
of the Group for the prior year.

Other income, net

10% of the total revenue

6

BEFENTEPEEINANEERY

#=HH910% °

Htt WA FHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1tT-—HLEE

2019 2018

—E-AHF —E-N\HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Bank interest income ;ITH B UA 198 281
Net exchange (loss)/gain FE 5 (E518), W R 5 (69) 79
Sales of materials Ei=h == 35 —
164 360
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

7 Expenses by nature

—“NE+-A=+—HLFE

BEMHEETHNAEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Costs of materials B AR 38,225 66,246
Subcontractor costs 7B K AR 89,214 79,269
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) B B@FIF 2 (#79)
— directors’ remuneration (Note 10) — B
(Btat10) 6,648 6,425
— direct labour — HEST 14,934 13,906
— administrative staff — THRE T 2,767 2,997
Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 & WK
&1 946 259
Impairment losses on contract assets BREEREEE 249 113
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B % B
— Audit services — R R 1,000 950
— Non-audit services — ERERTE 70 60
Depreciation of plant and equipment WEREZBEITE
(Note 14) (Htit14) 372 219
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEENE
(Note 15) (Ktit15) 462 —
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMESEHEE
minimum lease payments of rented NEEERE
premises HE 668 848
Listing expenses WX — 7,126
Write-off of plant and equipment R 5 B 5% 185 38 — 20
Other expenses E At B 2 8,372 8,646
163,927 187,084
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

8 Finance costs 8 BHmEA&

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1tT—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
Finance costs B 7 B AR
— Interest on bank borrowing — RITEFRF A 512 848
— Interest on bank overdraft — RITBEIHE — 24
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) — HEBEMNA
(K3t 15) 40 —
552 872
9 Employee benefit expenses 9 EERAMEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T FHET

Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances T & - ¥& - 7E4L
KoL 23,742 22,876

Pension cost — defined contribution RIKESRA —

scheme FE HRET & 607 452

24,349 23,328
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

g

Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. For
members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes at
the lower of HK$1,500 per month or 5% of relevant
payroll costs each month to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme for eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are
due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of
HK$$607,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$452,000) represents contributions paid and
payable by the Group at rates as specified in the
respective rules of the above mentioned schemes.

9

BEEANAX (&)

AEE 2 ERERGMELTREE K
PIRRzmad R Eesa((RES
&) G RO E B KRG 8 o AT E
MEEEAKENEEDRTA  H
ERANESEE BB EX
EmME  AN&EEE A1,500% 7Tk
BAFT AR 2 5% (AR E B%E) MR
BeidHF MEETFLHRESS
B HERK

AEBRRMAGEREBEREREHR
FRNGFE - At EMEBEERBILIE
EAEENESBAEESFREER -
R — XA NEE B EE AN
BEE-HFRIBEHEIAL/EERF
X URzEREREREHEBHEK
Al B B9 5T &) AR W w0 4 SR R 4> o

HE_Z-NE+_A=+—8Hit#
ERiBmERA S 48%607,0007 7T
— T — \4F : 452,000/ 7T) tE AN £ E
Z i EIEEROFABENRER
R EART B R -
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Employee benefit expenses (Continued) 9

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two directors for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: two directors), details of whose remunerations are
set out in Note 10. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining highest paid employees who are
neither director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

EEERBE X (E)
TEESTFHMAL

BE_ZT-—NF+A=+—BL#F
E-AEELEGESFMALEEM
FEE(CTE-)N\F - WMBESF)H
HMHFBENMEI0- FR - £
REFMER (LEARREZTHRSD
THRAB)WHEMABNOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018

—E-NF —FE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e hHAMmET 2,359 2,282

Discretionary bonus [SREREESE — 179
Contribution to retirement benefits RAKAE A 5T 2= 3

scheme 40 40

2,399 2,501

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the director or chief executive of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

YIARBREZTRZHTRABRLSH
i B8 70 LA T 48 5 9 Y B = B B4R B Y
gEmMT

Number of employees

EEHEA
2019 2018
2% —2-N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000/ 7T 3 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&

1,500,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

FAAKEBERARREELR
AEREFMAL(BREEREE)X
NE  ERMAIIMAREERD
RE S ABERAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

10 Benefits and interests of directors 10
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) and Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap.622G)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (included as key
management compensation)

Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric, Mr. Lei For and Mr. Lai Wai
Ming were appointed as the independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 31 January
2018.

The remuneration of the directors is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

ESNENRER (REFE

(1 AHER B (F 78 &5 56622
B)F3MHEE(AA(WEE
EMZmER) R (FREH
$622GE) WERIKE)

(a) EEM=GrARTIEEERE
] )

HEELL  FREENRRER
EER-_ZE-NF—-—A=+—H
BZERRNRABYIFNITE
=o

E=HFMEIINDT

BE—F-NF+ZA=1+—H
IEFE

Executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

BTES BUkHTES
Ms. Lai Mr. Choy Mr. Lai

Mr. Chung Suk Fan  Hiu Fai, Eric Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total

BrE  BWELET  HEEERE ANsE  REHKE -

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THER TER TR THER TER BRI

Fees ng - - 180 180 180 540
Other emoluments e

— Salaries and other benefits — e REMER 4,831 1,205 - - - 6,036

— Discretionary bonus —BERL - - - - - -

— Contribution to retirement benefits scheme  — RIREFHEI R 36 36 - - - 7

Total EHY 4,867 1,241 180 180 180 6,648
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10 Benefits and interests of directors 10 EEXENERERZ(BRESTE
(disclosures required by section 383 of (AR BIN(E B L Bl %622
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance BH)EIBHER(AR (HEE
(Cap.622) and Companies (Disclosure of EFmER) RAUNEBZEDG
Information about Benefits of Directors) #622GE) WERIKE) (E)
Regulation (Cap.622G) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (included as key (a) EEMES(UETEEEEBHRMN
management compensation) (Continued) A) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_FE-NE+=-HA=+—H
IEFEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
BES BUkHTES
Ms. Lai Mr. Choy Mr. Lai
Mr. Chung Suk Fan Hiu Fai, Eric Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total
BrE  BRFRLT BEEEAE MRleE  BEWHLE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TERL TET TETL TERL TET

Fees n - - 151 151 151 453
Other emoluments Eiie

— Salaries and other benefits —HeREMEH 4331 1,028 — — — 5,359
— Discretionary bonus — WiERL 379 168 - — - 547
— Contribution to retirement benefits scheme ~ — R FIH &I 33 3 — — — 66
Total &3t 4,743 1,229 151 151 151 6,425
Discretionary bonus was determined with reference MIBEATI2ZEREEBNKE %
to the Group's operating results and individual ERBEAXREMET -
performance.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of REBEE_ZE-NF+_A="1—
the directors of the Company waived their HIEFE ARARZESTENE
emoluments nor agreed to waive their emoluments SRAEREFMHES (ZZE—N

for the year (2018: Nil). FomE)o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

—hE+ZA=+—RHLFE

10 Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) and Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap.622G) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

Save as disclosed in Note 10(a), the directors did not
receive any other retirement benefits or termination
benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available the directors’ services (2018:
Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of the directors, bodies
corporate controlled by and connected entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2019, there are no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
the directors, bodies corporate controlled by and
controlled entities with such directors (2018: Nil).

Director’'s material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 28, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

10

ESNERES (REFE

(1 RHER B (F 78 &5 55622
B)F3BHEE(AF(WEE
ENZEFR) RAU(EEEHM
$622GE) WERKE) (A)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EENEAREANRERER

BRHFE10@MAEREEIN EFR
F A I 42 U HR EL At fT5R PR 48 7
EHBEMN(ZE-N\F: &) -

BRESESREMAE=TRH
MR E

HE-_Z-—hNhF+=-A=+—8H
HFE ARRYTERESES
REMEEIME=ZAZHFKRE
(ZE—NF:8\)-

FRUESE ESNIEHEH
EZEHEBRIZEANER
BERRHEMXZHER

RZE—NF+=ZA=+—8"

MENLNES EFOXEHEE
ZESERAS T ANER
EERREMZTFILZH(ZE
—N\F &)

EERRG  RHHEHNHTNE
R

BRETEE28FT B E SN - AR AE
EMERFRIBE_FT—NF
TZA=t—HEFENEME
BEENARRAMERIIANTA
BEAKEXBAERNEARS

ZHEANTHREERKBEN
BEREH(ZZE-NF |-
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11 Income tax expense 11 FIEBMAX
The amount of income tax expense charged to the RERE 2 E KRR AR FTE B
consolidated statement of comprehensive income ekl
represents:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=+t-HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T FHET
Current income tax: BNHAFT 15 %%
— Hong Kong profits tax — BAEMNEM 2,509 —
— Macau complementary tax — RFIEHRE 1,777 3,635
— Under/(over) provision in prior years — BEFE
BETIR
(HBEEHE) 3 (106)
4,289 3,529
Deferred income tax (Note 23) EIEFTIS TR (A 3223) 571 (630)

Income tax expense FriS Bif = 4,860 2,899
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

1

Income tax expense (Continued)

(M

(ii)

Hong Kong profits tax

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%).

Macau Complementary Tax

Pursuant to a tax incentive approved under Section
20 of Decree Law No. 11/2016, Macau
Complementary Tax is levied at a fixed rate of 12%
(2018: 12%) on the taxable income above Macau
Pataca (“MOP") 600,000 (approximately
HK$574,000) of the Group’s operations in Macau.

1M FEHRAX (&)

(

(i)

ERMNEH

RNRZZEBE-NE=A=-+—0" ' F
BUEERBE—+LEMK
(B (BT ([ZER]) - 8l A
MARFEHESE - ZERRZ
E-NF=ZA=ZF+N\HEEKS
FERERZEATIEER - BREM
BAEHGNE  AEREBEER
#) B2,000,000% JT i A #8 LA
8.25%K) Bl & B Bl - ifh B B
2,000,000/ 7T ' F #5 LA 16.5%
M EER - RBEFEMRFIE
MEFNEERNERETEN =T
HERF BB E165%(ZF
—N\FE 16.5% ) HF -

BMFEHEER

R IE R PI A < 511/20165% 520
BiFTHLE 2 B E SR - BPIFTE
1 75 i % 15600,00008 P #
([ P9 ¥ 1) (49574,0005% 7T) &9
RE BRI EBE ) ERTA AL
N%(ZZFE—NF . 12%)EE
i R U -
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Income tax expense (Continued) 11 PSSk (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FAMGEHRAXATEEZS 2EKE X
the profit before income tax per the consolidated FREi bR TS B E M SR a0 T

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE  —E2-)N\%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Profit before income tax K P15 5% Bl & A 26,171 13,039
Tax calculated at the applicable tax rates %@ AR R E K
I8 3,549 772
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  “FAI I X 1,173 2,395
Income not subject to tax HERBIUA (81) (72)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEEEEIR
(FBRE M) 3 (106)
Others HAb 216 (90)
Income tax expense Fris®if = 4,860 2,899
Dividends 12 BRE
No dividend was declared or paid by the Company during RARREBEZE-_FT—-—hLF+=ZA

=+ BULEFEYES IR ERA
BRE(ZZ—NF &)

the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

—hE+ZA=+—RHLFE

13 Basic and diluted earnings per share 13 SREXKEBERF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EREXRBNIEARREE AELE
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted FBRIAFANE BT MR ME TS
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the FESE -
year.
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF — )\
Profit attributable to owners RNARHEE NEG
of the Company (in HK$'000) i A (F 7T 21,311 10,140
Weighted average number BT E AR ME
of ordinary shares in issue T 574,000,000 551,590,411
Basic earnings per share BREKRZF
(HK cents per share) (F BB 3.71 1.84
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings BERESRBNENRGRERAETR -
per share since the Company has no dilutive potential BREARNBREBEE_ZT — ﬂi&_g

shares during the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018.

—NFE+-_A=+T—-BLFEEREA
BB MR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

14 Plant and equipment 14 HBERRE
Furniture
Motor and office
vehicles equipment Total
£S5
RE BAERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHBT FHBT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H
Cost [N 79 241 320
Accumulated depreciation 2EiE (42) (92) (134)
Net book amount R EFEE 37 149 186
Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE T — \ £
+ZA=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 37 149 186
Exchange differences BT — ) (1
Additions NE 1,163 208 1,371
Depreciation e (158) 61) (219)
Write-off 54 — (20) (20)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 1,042 275 1,317
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+-A=+—H
Cost DN 1,233 422 1,655
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (191) (147) (338)
Net book amount BREFE 1,042 275 1,317
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZT— L
+-A=+—BLEFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 1,042 275 1,317
Exchange differences B 1 1 2
Additions NE — 230 230
Depreciation e (279) (93) (372)
Closing net book amount FRIEMEFE 764 413 1,177
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-F=+—8H
Cost (DN 1,235 652 1,887
Accumulated depreciation E i 471) (239) (710)
Net book amount REFE 764 413 1,177
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

14

15

Plant and equipment (Continued) 14 #BERZHE(E)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation of BE_ZE-NAFt+A=1+—BILF
HK$372,000 (2018: HK$219,000) were charged to E - #E372,0008 T(ZF — N\ F .
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of 219,000/ 7T) E FEEEWERAIT
comprehensive income. I A 32 0 BR
During the year ended 31 December 2018, plant and HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HBLHF
equipment with cost of HK$33,000 and accumulated E - A 733,000/ 7T &) & B K 5% 1 A
depreciation of HK$13,000 were written off. 257 E 13,0000 7 4% il 44 o
Leases 15 HE
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) PREERGEUBRRRERN
statement of financial position relating to leases -}
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
R-ZZE-—hE RZT—NF
+=BA=+—H —A—HR
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE
Office premises MRAEYHE 812 749
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current ik 645 365
Non-current R 181 384
826 749

During the year ended 31 December 2019, additions
to the right-of-use assets were HK$525,000.

BE_T-NF+_-_A=1—H
JtEJ; MNEWNEREEER
525,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

15 Leases (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

15 #HE (&)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) REEAGFE2HRBREIN
statement of comprehensive income relating to -}
leases
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—BHLEE
2019 2018
—E2-NF —F-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i iF FTET FHETT
Depreciation of right-of-use FERAREEINE
assets — office premises — WREYE
(included in administrative (FFATTE R )
expenses) 7 462 —
Interest expense MERX (BT A
(included in finance costs) KA 8 40 —
Expense related to ByE EITH E B A
short-term leases (included M (GTAHE
in cost of sales and AR RATB R )
administrative expenses) 7 668 —
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total BE-ZT—-hnF+=-A=+—H
cash outflow for leases were HK$1,156,000. EFE - HEMNBRRLRER
1,156,000/ 7T °
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (i) AEENEETBEREARAR

accounted for

The Group leases office premises. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 2 years
with no extension option.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

REEBHEBPAEYE - HLH—
RIBVE2F B EFHETL - A
REEE

MEGRFZENEEHHALES
Z IR R S 5 - HE W5
I EEIEMRLY  EHEEE
MERERmHEARE -HE
BETSREBRNER® -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

16

Contract assets

BHNEE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Construction contracts HEEEND 29,965 39,071
Less: Provision for impairment loss BB ERE
allowance (718) (467)
29,247 38,604

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditional on the Group’s future
performance. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional. The
Group typically reclassifies contract assets to trade
receivables on the date of payment certificates issued by
the customers when such right of collections becomes
unconditional other than the passage of time.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on contract
assets:

BREETBZEAKERDT R T KK
MRz IREBREZENER B
REUENBURNAEE N ARRKRA -
ERRENRBEGES AHNEES
BREBEHERWRA AKEBFER
FP#ANRESE B £ 7ZBRER K
REGT(EEFEBERIMNEKE
MEEBHODBRREZEEFEA-

BREERRBRENZESNT

2019 2018

—E-hE  —2-N\#F

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

At 1 January n—H—H 467 358
Exchange differences MEHER 2 4)
Impairment loss allowance recognised BRI E B EEE 249 113
At 31 December R+—BR=+—H 718 467

Details of the impairment assessment for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in Note 3.1(b).

BHE-_Z—hhaFr_ZT—N\F+=-A
—t+t—HLEFENREIGFBIN
B EE3.1(b) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

17 Trade and other receivables, deposits 17 ESRHMEKRRE ZE£

and prepayments

RENRE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Trade receivables (Note /) B 5 W SRIA (K7 73i) 67,939 48,762
Less: Provision for impairment loss BB EEERE
allowance (2,115) (1,165)
65,824 47,597
Other receivables, deposits (Note ii) HEUKIE & e
(Bt &tii) 402 316
Other current assets — prepayments Hi e & E
— FETRIA 1,588 1,469

67,814 49,382
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

17 Trade and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments (Continued)

()

Trade receivables

Trade receivables arise from the provision of supply,
installation and fitting-out services of MVAC system
for buildings. The Group grants a credit period
ranged from 30 to 45 days to its customers. The
following is an aging analysis of trade receivables
based on valuation dates of payment certificates or
reports net of provision for impairment loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period:

17

BEZRHMBERRE - BE
RN FEGA)

()

85 EWKE

B 5 RUCGRIBERN IR HE F W
BELZEFHRGHMHE  RER
KERK -ARERETFPEY
EEH N F30H £45H - T X
AR EMRRIE N RE P KR
iﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]f’f%&“uﬁz X IR R e
DT B REERERA)

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 29,917 19,630
31 to 60 days 31£260H 11,180 14,140
61 to 90 days 61290H 16,073 13,210
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 8,654 —
181 to 365 days 1812365H — —
Within 1 to 2 years —EmMEF — —
Within 2 to 3 years MZE =4 — 617
65,824 47,597
The fair value of trade receivables approximate their B SRKFREBEN AT EEART
carrying values. BHEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

17 Trade and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments (Continued)

()

Trade receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

17 EZREMUBEWRRE - &S
R A RE (&)

(i) EBEZEWXREGME

B REFRENREENTIIE
KatE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FET
HK$ BT 38,470 25,031
MOP prde kit 27,354 22,566
65,824 47,597

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Credit limits
granted to customers are reviewed periodically.
Management of the Group closely monitors the
credit quality of trade receivables and considers the
majority of the Group’s trade receivables that are
past due but not impaired have good credit quality
with reference to respective settlement history.

EMEIMHEFA  AEEEH
BMEEEPNEEERREREP
REFERE XEMRIRT
EPHNEERBE AEEEEE
EUERESRRFENERE
= URBHEBEENLE  BR
AREBARDEBIERBED
BHRBKEBEEERRI -
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B

17 Trade and other receivables, deposits 17

and prepayments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement of the provision for impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables are as follows:

BEZRHMBERRE - BE

JSEERTES

()

R IH (R)
B 5 M8 W 3%0R ()

B 5 B W SR IB R (B B 1R B R e
o T

2019 2018

—E-AF  —EB-\F

HK$°000 HK$’'000

TE T FAET

At 1 January n—H—H 1,165 916
Exchange differences EHER 4 (10)

Impairment loss allowance ERRIBEEERE

recognised 946 259
At 31 December R+=—BR=+—H 2,115 1,165
Details of impairment assessment for the years BE_ZT-—NWFERZZ-NF
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in TZA=+—HBIEFE/RET

Note 3.1(b).

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

The fair value of other receivables and deposits

approximate to their carrying values.

Details of impairment assessment for the other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 are set out in Note

3.1(b).

(ii)

||F

B IS EMNHIE3.1(b)
Htb B FHIE - BERFANKE

HipEUHRIBERIZE R
HEmEMEE

FlEH

BHE_Z—NWFAhkFE—N\F
+—A=+—RHIFE HitfE
U B Mt & B RVE RS R IE E
R FE3.1(b) °
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18 Pledged and restricted bank deposits and

cash and cash equivalents

18 EE M R Z R H]ITFERU

RRERAEEEY

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2019 2018
—2-nE  —T-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITFER 3,132 3,064
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITER 10,275 9,266
13,407 12,330

Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEY

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRS 28,071 28,183

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
a bank to secure a banking facility granted to the Group
(including overdraft and trade facilities) with maturity
within one year from the end of the reporting period and
is therefore classified as a current asset. The pledged bank
deposits carried interest at a fixed rate of 2.0% per
annum as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 2.3% per annum).

The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks
as security for due performance under several service
contracts of MVAC system for buildings with prevailing
market interest rate ranging from 0.25% to 0.3% per
annum as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 0.25% to 0.3%
per annum) (Note 26).

EEARTHERERATERFIRT
BE(BREXRESRE) MERT
RITOFR FH A ARETHREF
RE—F BOBARBEE N
E-NF+ZA=+—H8B BEAR
THERREEFMNE20%(ZF—N
FFEMKR23%)FE -

XBRHIRITTFRIBETHRREITHR
T IEAEFEMBRREERARAD
ETHRBEEONBHRBSER B
TE-AFE+-A=+—B®EITH
BERRNF0.25%E03% (ZZE— )\
£ FEFE0.25%FE0.3% ) (M 5E26) o
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18 Pledged and restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

The carrying amounts of pledged and restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following

18 EEHFRR

BR 5 4R 17 17 K B

RRERBAESEEY (&)

EHEMRERHIRITER
Y REESRD
ATHEEE:

TEHE

&ﬁi&ﬁ

FEBAE

currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=ZRA=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T&E T FHET
HK$ BT 33,330 28,156
MOP B P 8,148 12,357
41,478 40,513

19 Trade and retention payables

19 EZREANRERENRESE

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—8H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$'000
T % T FAT

Trade payables H ZENHRIE

— Third parties — H=F 12,609 18,551
— Related parties (Note 28(iii) — @@ T7 (M 2£28(i)) 937 2,539
13,546 21,090
Retention payables EARES 9,634 7,401
23,180 28,491
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19 Trade and retention payables 19 ESEAREREMARES
(Continued) (&)

The credit period of trade payables granted by DEEERMEFIRE BN RERD
subcontractors and suppliers range from 30 to 60 days WEEH RN FELARRIRE
upon the issue of invoices or application of interim BRI 3R 1830E601

payment generally.

ATHNERIBEER A BRFP N
A B (HER) N8 SN KA R

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based
on the invoice dates or the dates of application of interim

payment, as appropriate. ST
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
T & T FAT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 7,396 11,907
31 to 60 days 31260H 2,330 3,355
61 to 90 days 61£290H 134 2
91 to 180 days 91£180H 138 33
181 days to 1 year 181HE—%F — 60
Over 1 year il —F 3,548 5,733
13,546 21,090

Retention payables to subcontractors are interest-free and
payable at the end of the defect liability period of

individual contracts,
completion date of the respective project.

normally one vyear from the

BN EEANREE /% E AR E

A& DRER TS

R (— R SHERAEE

SEREHESN —F) e
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19 Trade and retention payables 19 EZERAREREMARESE
(Continued) (%&)
The retention payables are expected to be settled, based BEREBERBE BHRESE
on the expiry date of the defect liability period, at the end HRBERRNERNBERIAT

of the reporting period as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=ZB=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Due within one year —F N B Hf 2,378 1,630
Due after one year — F 1% % Hf 7.256 5,771
9,634 7,401
The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables BSRNRERENRESHERE
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the BEAFEEE  WATIEETE:

following currencies:

As at 31 December

BW+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FAT
HK$ BT 17,194 20,640
MOP N 5,986 7,851

23,180 28,491
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20 Other payables and accrued expenses

20

HttENRERETEH

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
Accrued staff costs JBET B TR A 2,258 3,582
Other accrued charges HiEsr & A 1,557 1,069
Other payables H b f& 1 5K 1B 96 132
3,911 4,783

The carrying amounts of other payables and accrued
expenses, net of accrued salaries, approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities. Other payables and

accrued expenses are denominated

in the following

H B 5RIR R R & B (FOBR BT #7
BINAFEEEKRAERES  BAE
HIMREXAT - EL 15 5R0R Mg R B A
T3 EEEHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F & T FHET
HK$ BT 2,953 3,856
MOP B P 958 927

3,911 4,783
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21 Bank borrowing 21

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E—fE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT

Secured B R
— Bank borrowing which contain a — BEREREE
repayable on demand clause TR E) R 1T

& 3% 6,451 13,138
The fair value of the bank borrowing approximates its RITERNATFEEARREES

carrying amount as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

The bank borrowing due for repayment, based on the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreement,
is as follows:

ARIFTEZEYTEK-

REERBEAETEERD L 2
HEENRITERAT

As at 31 December

R+=H=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FAET
Within one year —FR 6,451 6,686
Within a period of more than one year —&F LA EETEB
but not exceeding two years M 4F &) A A — 6,452
6,451 13,138
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Bank borrowing (Continued)

The bank borrowing as at 31 December 2019 carried
interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 0.25% (2018:
same). The effective interest rate on the bank borrowing
(which is also equal to contracted interest rate) is 5.25%
per annum (2018: 5.38% per annum). The Group's bank
borrowing is denominated in HKS$.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowing was
secured by a corporate guarantee of HK$20,000,000 as
issued by the Company (2018: same).

21

iR 1T 18 X (&)

R-ZE—-—NhE+-_A=+—H  $R17T
BHIEBTRERFEN0.25% (=F
—N\EHRDFE - RBTERNEE
MR EERTOMNR)AEHF
525% (ZZF— \F : §4538%) - &
EBERIRITERABTEE -

NZZT—-—hE+_A=+—08"#R1T
BRHEAQDAELENDAER
20,000,000 TTIEE (=T — )\ F .
HE) o

Share capital and reserves 22 BAR#E
(i) Share capital (i) KX
The movements in the Company’s authorised and RARMEE R B EHITE BRI
issued ordinary share capital are as follows: AREBHMOT :
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Total
BREE Btn & 8 @t
HK$'000
TET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2018, R-ZZE-N\¥-A—-H"
31 December 2018 and 2019 “E-N\FRZB-NF
+-A=+—H HK$0.01/87C  100,000,000,000 1,000,000
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22 Share capital and reserves (Continued)

22 BRARG#HE(E)

(i) Share Capital (Continued) (i) BA&E
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Total
SREE R EE @it
HK$'000
FET
Issued and fully paid: EERTRAR:
At 1 January 2018 R-Z-N\E—F—§ HK$0.01% 7T 780,000 8
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note @)~ A ARIL BT (K ta) HK$0.017% T 429,720,000 4,297
Issue of shares by Share Offer (Note b) BB % & %17 D
(Hib) HK$0.017 7T 143,500,000 1,435
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NERZZ-NF
and 2019 +ZA=+—H HK$0.017%8 7T 574,000,000 5,740
Notes: Hrat -
a. On 27 February 2018, a total of 429,720,000 shares a. RZE-NF_AZ++H &
were allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, to B ARR AR & R AREE
the then sole shareholder of the Company by way of 4,297,200 7T & ARt 1 A & B
capitalisation of a sum of HK$4,297,200 standing to the AR HME— RN B REBITIR
credit of the share premium account of the Company. HEAERINEHR M E H#
Such shares rank pari passu in all respects with the then 429,720,0008% f% 7 #2 & Ik 17
existing issued shares of the Company. ERMETHEARAAERIRE Z
BRITRGOEERFHA -
b. On 27 February 2018, 143,500,000 ordinary shares with b. RZE-—NF-_A=-+tH &

a par value of HK$0.01 each of the Company were
issued at a price of HK$0.38 each by way of Share
Offer (comprising a public offer of 43,050,000 shares
and a placing of 100,450,000 shares). Such shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued
shares of the Company. On the same date, the shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange.

A A1143,500,0008% & I ™ &
OB TZEBREFBRME
E 5 R(BEQAHABE
43,050,0008% & 1 K B &
100,450,0000% f% 17 ) 1% 5 f%0.38
B2 BRET - ZERMDER
EFESEARGENRE 2B
TENEERS A - AE - B
MR FT £ e



Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

22 Share capital and reserves (Continued)

(ii)

Reserves

(a) Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the waived dividends
declared and approved by the Company to the
shareholders in 2017, which are deemed as
capital contribution from shareholders and
credited to the capital reserve of the
Company.

(b) Other reserve

Other reserves of the Group represented the
difference between the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation as completed in December 2016
and the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company issued in exchange thereof.

23 Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)

The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax
assets/(liabilities) for financial reporting purposes:

22 BARRE(E)
(i) FEfR
(a) BFMEH

BRARERARANR_-F
—tFRAKRE K &I E
R E R IS B B E W
BRERNERNEEIL G
AR DB E RN e

(b) EHfEkE

AEBEMBREBERER
TE-RET-ATEKH
B A P UEE I B  R) Y R
REARRB ARG E AT
BITBRAEENER -

23 EEFBHREE (AE)

AT RBIERBRERENELRE
MEE/ (BE) D :

As at 31 December

159

R+=—HA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Deferred income tax assets BILFFEHEE 211 782
Deferred income tax liabilities REIEFSHARE (730) (730)

(519) 52
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23 Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) 23 EZEFEBHEE (BFE)
(Continued) (%)
The following is an analysis of deferred income tax assets/ NTIRRENERNELTEMENEE
(liabilities) recognised and their movements during the S (BE)REFEH DN
year:
Timing
Expected differences
credit loss Tax on costs
provision losses  recognition Total
AHEE D@
BEEE BEESR BARE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET FAET TET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—-—A—H 152 — (730) (578)
Credited to consolidated FAGEEERER
statement of comprehensive
income — 630 — 630
At 31 December 2018 R-ZF—-N\%F
+-A=+—H 152 630 (730) 52
Charged to consolidated BRAZEREERNRK
statement of comprehensive
income 59 (630) — (571)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—N\&F
+-A=+—H 21 — (730) (519)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. The Group recognised deferred
assets of HK$630,000 in respect of the tax losses
amounting to HK$3,818,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018, which have been subsequently utilised for
the year ended 31 December 2019. There is no
unrecognised tax losses for the year ended 31 December
2018 and 2019.

income tax

BREFSHEEDRRIBABELEEE
BREERERUATER : SEBEN
ERB AN ERAERBAEEEA
- AEERBEE-_ZTE-N\F+=A
—+—BHIEFERFIEEIE3818,000
7 JT BE SRR R FT 15 B & E630,000%
T RBEEBEREE=Z—NF
T+ A=+ HIEFEHR -HE—
E-NFER_E-NF+_A=1+—
AEFEWERERRIERIE -
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24 Financial instruments by category 24 REHEIHWUKEITA
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—®-nE  —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial assets BMEEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKN A EN
VBEE
— Trade receivables (Note 17) — B EEWHIAE
(K1at17) 65,824 47,597
— Other receivables and deposits — HiERRIER
(Note 17) w’eMat17) 402 316
— Pledged and restricted bank deposits ~ — T K & F R
(Note 18) RITER
(K1 :£18) 13,407 12,330
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) — H&RBE&E
BY (K at18) 28,071 28,183
107,704 88,426
Financial liabilities MEaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R ANETERN
B aE
— Trade and retention payables — B ZEMNFIAR
(Note 19) M RE 2
(Hta£19) 23,180 28,491
— Other payables (Note 20) — H fth JE T 3RIE
(Ht&t20) 1,653 1,201
— Bank borrowing (Note 21) — RITIE
(Bta21) 6,451 13,138
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) — HEAafE
(H17#15) 826 —

32,110 42,830
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25 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 25 ZEHERERK
flows

(a)

Cash flows from operating activities (a) RETHFBHEESRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-AF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Cash flows from operating RETBRERS
activities mE
Profit before tax B %% B A 26,171 13,039
Adjustments for: AT B I
— Impairment losses on trade — B 5 e FIE
receivables B EE 946 259
— Impairment losses on contract ~ — &%) EERE
assets & 18 249 113
— Depreciation of plant and — BT HETE
equipment 372 219
— Depreciation of right-of-use — FREEENE
assets 462 —
— Write-off of plant and — MR N R
equipment — 20
— Interest expense — M B X 552 872
— Interest income — MBI A (198) (281)
Operating profit before working &EE & % B A Y
capital changes RERF 28,554 14,241
— Decrease/(increase) in contract — AHNEE
assets (3 hn) 9,170 (8,878)
— Increase in trade and other — B RHAM
receivables, deposits and JE W R IE
prepayments Ze RIEM
FRIEIE AN (19,284) (30,512)
— Decrease/(increase) in trade and — B HENKIE KR
retention payables JE - (R [E &
OB ),/ HE hn (5.346) 9,097
— Decrease in other payables and ~ — E il J&E {5 ZIBE &
accrued expenses JEFT B AR (905) (695)
Cash generated from/(used in) s,/ (FTA)

operations

Be 12,189 (16,747)
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25 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 25
flows (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2019

VAN
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REREREBRMHE (&)

(b) F¥RERERBMEFTH

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Additions to right-of-use assets REGAREE
(Note 15) (K17£15) 525 —

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

() REWMEFHNEEBHIR

activities
Accrued
share issue Interest
cost payable
— other — other
payables payables
and accrued and accrued Bank Lease
expenses expenses  borrowing liabilities Total
it R4
RITER ERFE
— HitEN — HitEq
RER HER
it & A & A RITER HEARE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TERT TER
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-A—H — 87 19,485 - 19,572
Non- cash interest expenses REFERX - 872 — - 872
Non-cash share issue cost accrued EEReROHETER 7,663 — — - 7,663
Cash flows BeRE (7,663) (812) (6,347) — (14,822)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$+=ZA=1+—H — 147 13,138 — 13,285
Recognised on adoption of RMBENBREES
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) FIRIRER(W22) - - - 749 749
— 147 13,138 749 14,034
Non-cash interest expenses FHREFMEFAZ - 512 — 40 552
Addition from new leases REFHENRE — - - 525 525
Cash flows Reng - (482) (6,687) (488) (7,657)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NFt-A=1+—H — 177 6,451 826 7,454
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26

27

Contingencies 26 IARAEME
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T & T FHET
Performance bonds (Note) BHIREB® (B iE) 10,275 9,266
Note: Hrat
Balance refers to the indemnities issued to a bank for performance ERIERRESCANEORZSMMIRITE
bonds in respect of construction contracts. In the event of non- HHEE - WTETERE  BERPREHBEHOR
performance, the customers might call upon the performance bonds B MAEEBFERERENBEHRIEZRA
and the Group would be liable to the banks in respect of the RITHERBEEME
performance bonds provided.
Operating lease commitments 27 REMEEEAR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMEBRR REBBREDAHEL
commitments for future minimum lease payments under EHERPAEMEEB RARKEMR
non-cancellable operating leases for its office premises ERFAR HEANAT
which fall due as follows:
As at
31 December
2018
RZZE—N\F
+=-ZA=+—8H
HK$ 000
FET
Within one year —FR 665
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZEFNF(BEEERSF) 33
698

The leases as at 31 December 2018 were negotiated for
terms ranging from six months to two years. None of the
leases includes any contingent rentals.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-
use assets for these leases, except for short-term leases,
see Note 2.2 and Note 15 for details.

RZE—-N\F+_A=+—HHHE
MEEFHBENTAEAEZME - #
EEERETMREE -

BE-ZE-NAF—-A—HE XAKED
PRREHEERECAREE  HEEH
HERS  FHERMFE2 2R M F15-
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28 Related party disclosures 28 BEHAIEE

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following individuals or companies were related parties

that had transactions or balances with the Group.

Related parties

Relationship with the Group

ARABERR/RATALHAFRE
AEBBRXHHEHOBED -

BT EAKENRR
Mr. Chung Controlling shareholder and executive director of the Group
iz ilaa AEBEERBRRERATES

Cheuk Yat Engineering
E—I

Tai Tak E & M Co.
NI /NC]

Mr. Chung Cheuk Him, Mr. Chung’s nephew-in-law, has controlling interest

BRENBOESRTEEZ AR EAERES

Mr. Chung Chu Sum, Mr. Chung’s brother, has joint control
BEENRPEEREEEZERLERER LRZEGI#E

(i) Related party transactions (i) BEEIXS

The Group had entered into the following

RAREE AEECD EEB T

transactions with related parties during the year: TIATR S :
Name of related company  Relationship Nature of transaction Year ended 31 December
BE+=ZA=+-8H
BEARAEH BE XHHE LLEE
2019 2018
“E-AE ZEZ-)N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Tai Tak E & M Co. Mr. Chung Chu Sum, Mr. Chung's  Sub-contracting expense from — 124
brother, has joint control installation services of MVAC
system
AEIRARA BRENMREAREEHES REKHBRRERZRNTE
S[R3 ] REHHEER
The transaction was entered into at terms mutually ZRXGTIRAEENR B ESEB
agreed with the related party in the ordinary course BRI EEE T LRI EIER

of the Group’s business. HIIAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

28 Related party disclosures (Continued) 28 BEE L INE (&)

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel (i) TEEEASRHM
Key management personnel are deemed to be the FEERBABHBRAARGES
members of the board of directors and senior ekaREREKE KEAR
management of the Company who have the REIRESNAEENEE - E5
responsibility for the planning and controlling the K 5% M % B B A AR BN o
activities of the Group. The remuneration of directors ™
and these two members during the vyear is as
follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—RHLEE

2019 2018

—E-—hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries and other benefits FekHEMER 7,382 6,701

Discretionary bonus @’] TBIEAL — 636
Contribution to retirement IR R AE A 5T &4 50

benefits scheme 107 101

7,489 7,438
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28 Related party disclosures (Continued) 28 B AW E (&)

(iii) Amounts due to related companies (iii) FEBEABE T HRIE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Cheuk Yat Engineering (Note a) 21718 (/)7/7‘:‘}*5) — 728
Tai Tak E & M Co. (Note b) N I /N
(Bt7th) 937 1,811
937 2,539
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balances are RZZE-NAER-ZZF-NF+=
interest-free, unsecured and approximate to their fair A=+—8" ﬁ?ﬁf’r% g EmE
values. R BE ’D\$TE$H
Notes: it
(@  The amount represented an amount due to Cheuk Yat (a) #EBEENE—IREZHE H
Engineering, in which Mr. Chung Cheuk Him, Mr. A-HHRELENBIBESHE
Chung’s nephew-in-law, has controlling interest. The SHEEIERERN AT - ZHIE
amount was of trade nature and had a credit term of BE51HE  FEHR30A -
30 days.
(b)  The amount represented an amount due to Tai Tak E & (b) ZARBEEEMNAEBIREAR
M Co., a partnership in which Mr. Chung Chu Sum, Mr. 1 - ﬁi%*ﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬁf‘ﬁiﬁ’]ﬂ@%ﬁ
Chung’s brother, has joint control. The amount was of HEREEHREHRZHENERE
trade nature and had a credit term of 30 days. X -ZREBEINLE 8

/308 °
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29

Particulars of subsidiaries of the

Company

The Company has direct and indirect equity interests in the

29 ALREIKMBRANFS

ARBRUATHBRRAEAEERKH

following subsidiaries: B
Issued and
fully paid
Place and date of  Principal place of share capital/  Equity interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries incorporation business quota capital to the Group Principal activities
BETRAR
WEARERE EMALBHRAE TEEXBH BRE/ BERE AEEEERE TEEY
2019 2018
“E-hE ZZT-)N\F
Botop Engineering (Macau) Limited* Macau, Macau MOP25,000 100% 100% Provision of supply,
5 March 2007 installation and
fitting-out services of
MVAC system for
buildings in Macau
BAIIROEM) -ABRRAN B —2RLE EM 25,0002 F9 & NEFIREFREBR
=ALA BEREBZGN
HE REREE
R 7%
Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited* Hong Kong, Hong Kong HK$700 100% 100% Provision of supply,
25 July 1996 installation and
fitting-out services of
MVAC system for
buildings in Hong
Kong
RETR(BR)ERARY B —ANRE  FE 700/ 7T REERBTREAN
tAZ+hA BRRZHZRN
HIE REREE
R #%
Wing Fung Investment Management Limited*  The BVI, Hong Kong us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
22 September
2016
Wing Fung Investment Management Limited* EB#BREE X &S 1% BEER
ZE-RF
NAZ+ZH

* Subsidiary indirectly held by the Company and is the subsidiary

of Wing Fung Investment Management Limited

# Subsidiaries directly held by the Company

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

during the year or at the end of the year.

* RAGIREFRANRBRF - I AWing
Fung Investment Management Limited
Coliap=FNE]

# RARBEEFBONERA

A LMMBRARBRBERAA R
AEERRFHEA  ZEMBRRAH
BRTEMNESES -
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30 AREIMBRRARRREE

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITBRANKE 37,966 37,966
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 375 —
Amount due from a subsidiary (Note) B — BB A A
SRIE (K7 7E) 5,542 11,498
43,883 49,464
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and H i pe W 5k 1E -
prepayments Re RIENKIE 1,470 1,200
Cash and cash equivalents HehkBeEEYD 278 1,526
1,748 2,726
Totalassets ... XKE®®| 45631 . 52,190
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables and accrued expenses Hib BRI HRIER
FEETE A 1,621 1,695
Lease liabilities HE&E 385 —
Total liabilities BEHAE 2,006 1,695
Net assets EEFE 43,625 50,495
Equity &
Share capital N 5,740 5,740
Reserves 1 37,885 44,755
Total equity RS 43,625 50,495

Note: The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is expected
to be recovered after twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.

Bet : SRR R AR - NEH B TR B S 0
SHRER @A R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

30 Statement of financial

—hE+ZA=+—RHLFE

position and

30 ARAIMBRRARRFEE

reserves of the company (Continued) (#&)
Movement in the Company’s reserves ARTRENRE
Retained
profits/
Share Capital  (accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
REBHEAN,
1 % 8 EARGE (RFTE8R) by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZFE—NF—HF—H 12 11,676 6,307 17,995
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABEREZEEE
for the year k) — — (14,375) (14,375)
Capitalisation issue of shares BEARCBEITRG (4,297) — — (4,297)
Issue of shares by Share Offer FEBRRMHEBEESETRG 53,095 — — 53,095
Costs incurred in connection with issue Bt 21T AN 2 7] B (3 Ft
of shares of the Company =R AR (7,663) — — (7,663)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—-N\F
+=-A=+—H 41,147 11,676 (8,068) 44,755
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABEREZEEE
for the year ki) — — (6,870) (6,870)
At 31 December 2019 R-_ZT— 7‘L¢
+t-A=+— 41,147 11,676 (14,938) 37,885
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HEZ-ZT—

Event after the date of statement of
financial position

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been
implemented globally. The Group has assessed that as a
result of the COVID-19 outbreak, it may have the
following possible impact to the Group:

o progress of construction projects in Hong Kong and
Macau were delayed temporarily in the first quarter
because of the postponement of work resumption
after the Chinese New Year holiday, which may in
turn affect the operating results of the Group for the
first half of 2020; and

o the temporarily slowdown of business activities
resulted from the COVID-19 outbreak may lead to
delay in settlements from the customers and the
Group may have to experience longer turnover time
for recovering the trade receivables and contract
assets which may increase the associated credit risks.

Up to the date of this report, the impacts of the
COVID-19 outbreak on the Group's financial performance
and the macro-economic conditions as a whole remain
uncertain, the Group is unable to quantify the related
financial effects. The Group will continue to monitor and
assess the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its financial impact on the Group.

31
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NETZA=+—HLFE

MBERRBRBAPREH

R _TFEYBRE019TRBER
(2019 K Im S RIEE%E 2B
R —ERTEH RIEHEE N5 E
B H20198 Rm SR IE 1% - 7] &8
HAREFEFUATHE:

o EERAFMREEANEFH
EEEBLG  HAREHFE
EHET Hasemyers
BR-T-TE L EHSES
R

o 2019EMABHEHSHEEE
BERNE ATRSEPMNEN
- MAKE A e EREE 5

BRRARADAESE (08
BEHENE  SHBEEA
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

For the five years ended 31 December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 HZEZZ—HF —T—<"F  ZT—+tF 22— \GERZZT-NEF+-A=+—HILAEFE

Results E

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=1+T—-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NF ZE-NF ZFT—+tF ZE—RFE ZFT—HF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Consolidated results #REE& FET FAETT FAETT FAETT FAETT
Revenue g 25 190,486 200,635 166,082 134,366 128,592
Gross profit EH 45,244 38,334 32,569 24,633 22,737
Profit before income tax [ A7 18 %4 Al

i ) 26,171 13,039 8,030 17,935 17,855
Profit for the year A A 21,311 10,140 5,211 15,405 15,684

Assets and liabilities EERERE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+=-—A=+—-RHLtEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-AF ZE-N\F ZT—+F ZFT—RFE ZE—EHF
Consolidated assets #HKEEENR HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities =R FET FAET FAETT FAETT FAETT
Total assets WEE 140,739 130,598 74,046 91,088 64,997
Total liabilities |EE (38,615) (49,944) (52,349) (40,242) (37,644)
Net assets BEFE 102,124 80,654 21,697 50,846 27,353
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